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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30tr'Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company

will be held on Tuesday. the 29th September, 2020 at l0:30 a.m. IST through Video Conferencing

("VC") /Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
L To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the

year ended on 31" March, 2020 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and

Auditors thereon and in this regard. pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary
Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial

year ended March 31.2020 ancJ the reports o1-the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

laid before this meeting. be and are lrereby considered and adopted."

2. To appoint Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DlN:00123386). who retires by rotation and being

eligible. off'ers himself tbr re-appointment as a Director and iri this regard, pass the

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,

2013. Mr. Mano,j Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386). who retires by rotation at this meeting

and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. be and is hereby re-appointed as

a Director of the Company" liable to retire by rotation."

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Appointment of Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN:08599472), as a Director :

To consider and, if thoLrght fit. to pass with or r,vithout modification(s). the following

resolution as an Ordinarv Resolution:

,,RESOLVED THAT pursuant the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable

provisions. if anv. of the (lompanies Act. 2013 ("the Act") read with Companies

iAppointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules. 2Ol4,as amended from time to time,

und'pu.rrunt to tlre recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and

the Board of Directors, Mr. Balkrishan Aganval (DIN:08599472), n'ho was appointed as

Non-Executive Additional Director. of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect

from lltl'November.2Ol9, pursuant to section l6l of the Companies Act. 2013, and in

terms of Article I l6 of the Articles of Association of the Company and whose term of
office expires at the Annual General Meeting. in respect of whom the Company has

receivedanoticeinwritingunderSection 160(l)oftheActfromaMember,signifyinghis
intention to propose Mr. Agarwal's candidature fbr the office of the Director, be and is

hereby appointecl as a Non-executive Director. of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boarcl of Direclors of the Company (including its

Cogmittee thereofl ancl / or Companl' Secretarl" of the Companv. be and are hereby

authorisccl t9 cjo all sLrch acts. cleeds. mattcrs and things as mav be considered necessary,

desirable or expeclienl to give eflect to this resolution."



4. Appointment of Mr. Deepak 'fiwari (holding DIN:08839075), as an Independent
Director

To consider and. if thought fit, to pass rvith or without modification(s). the following
resolution as an Ordinarv Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149. 152 and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act.2013 ("the Act") read with Schedule IV to the

Act (inctuding any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being

in force) and the Companies (Appointrnent and QLralification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as

amended from time to time. and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Deepak Tiwari (holding

DIN:08839075) Director of the Company. who has submitted a declaration that he meets

the criteria fbr independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation

16(l) (b) o1'the Securities lrxchange Boarcl o1-lndia (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations" 2015. and w'ho is eligible for appointment. and in respect of
whom the C'ornpany has rcceived a notice in rvritirrg fiom a Mentber under Section 160(l)
of the Act signifying his intention to propose Mr. Tiwari's candidature for the office of
Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Directorof the Company."not liable

to retire by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years commencing from 29th August,

2020 upto 28'r August. 1025.

RESOLVED FURTHER TIIAT the Board of Directors of the Cornpany (including its
Committee thereof) and / or Compan-v- Secretary of the Company" be and are hereby

authorised to do all such acts^ deeds. matters and things as ma)'be considered necessary,

desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

5. Appointment of Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee (holding DIN:08837933), as an Independent
Director

To consicler and. if thoLrght fit. to pass rvith or rvithoLrt rnodification(s). the following
resolutiorr as atr Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT plrrsuant to the provisions of Sections 149.152 and other applicable

provisions. if any, of tlre ('ompanies Act.20l3 ("the Act") read with Schedule IV to the

Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof. for the time being

in force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as

amended from time to time. and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee ancl the Board of Directors. Ms.Tanr-rsree Chatterjee (holding

DIN:08837933) Director of tlre Company. who has submitted a declaration that she meets

the criteria for independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation

l6(1) (b) of the Securities Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations.20l5, and who is eligibte tbr appointment, and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(l)

of the Act signifying her intention to propose Ms. Chatterjee's candidature forthe office of
Director, be ancl is hereby appointed as arr Independent Director of the Company.,not liable

to retire by rolation, tbr a term of five consecutive years commencing from 29tl' August.

2020 upto 28'r' August. 2025."
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, te and are heieby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as maybe considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.,,

Regd.Office:
l58, HemantaBasuSarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date : 29th August,2O2O MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)

DIN: 00123386
NOTES:

1. In view of the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic and restriction imposed on movement of
peoples at several places in the country, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (,,MCA,,) vide
its Circular No.20/2020 dated May 5,2020 read with Circulir No.l4/2020 dated April g,
2020 and Circular No.1712020 dated April 13, 2O2O (collectively referred to as ,,MCA
Circulars") and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM,,) through
VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. ln
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (,,Act,,), SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2Ol5 ("SEBI Listing
Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC 7
.OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2073 the Register of
Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from
Wednesday, 23'd September, 2020 to Tuesday, 29tl' September,2020(both days inclusive)
for annual closing.

3. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the
Attendance Slip, Route Map and Praxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

4. The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i,e
l58 Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, Kolkata-70000l.Which shall be deimed to be venue
of the meeting.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdfljpeg format) authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Vieiing. The said Board
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered
email address to investorcare@norbentea.com

6. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through
an electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as presently in force and
the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.
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and instructions including details of user id and password relating to e-voting are provided
in the Notice under Note No.17

7 Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their
address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Shaie Transfer
Agents (RTA), MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. Members holding shares in electronic
mode are requested to send the intimation for change of address / bank mandate to their
respective Depository Participant.

8 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the Company,s RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a
single folio.

9. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode as per
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already
complied with, please ignore this).

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the R&T Agent or to the
Registered Office of the Company.

i1. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as
possible..Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository
Participant and holdings should be verified.

12. Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of the notice.
The Director has furnished the requisite declaration for his/her re-appointment.

l3.Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 30thAnnual General Meeting of
the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all
the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)
for communication purposes.

In terms of SEBI circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDL|CINPI2O2OIT} dated May 12,2020
Requirement of sending physical/hard copies of full annual report to shareholders has been
dispensed with. The members who have not updated their email address are requested to
do so immediately since the requirement of sending physical copies of annual repoft are
dispensed with.

14. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Register of Contracts
and Amangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Act and all other documents refened to in the Notice will be available for inspection in
electronic mode.
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15. Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in

respect of shares held by them pursuant to the Companies Act,20l3. The prescribed Form

(Form SH l3) can be obtained from the Share Depafiment of the Company. Members

desiring to avail this lacility mal,send their Nomination Form (in duplicate) duty filled in,

to the Company or its Share 'l'ransf.er Agents. MCS Share f ransf'er Agent Limited of 383,

Lake Gardens. l" Floor" Kolkata 7000115. by quoting their respective Folio Numbers.

16. Members ma) also note that the Notice of the 3O't'Annual General Meeting, the Annual

Reporl for 2019-20 lvill also be available on the Compan,v's website www.norbentea.com.
Even after registering fbr e-communication. members are entitled to receive such

communication in physical fbrm, upon making a request fbr the same. by post free of cost.

For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's

investor em ai I id : i nvestorca re'rt'inorbetltea. colll.

17. PROCEDURE & INS'TRUCTION FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING THE AGM
THRUOGH VC/OAVM ARE AS FOLLOWS:

A.Voting at the AGM

Remote Voting through electronic means

l. ln compliance ivith provisions of Section I08 o1'the Companies Act.20l3 and Rule 20

of the Ciornpanies (Management and Administration) Rules.20l4. as amended by the

Companies (Marragenrent and Administration) Rules. 2Ol5 and Regulation 44 of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements). Regulations, 2015, the

Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote at the

Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
. trapsacted through remote e-Voting ('remote e-voting'),services provided by Central

Depository Services (lndia) Lirnited ('CDSL'):

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:
(i) The voting periocl begins on 26'r'Septem"ber, 2020 (9:00 am) and ends on 28'r'september,

2020(5:00 pm). Dr-rring this period shareholders'of the Cornpany, holding shares either in

physical forrn or in dernaterialized form, as on the cut-ofT date of 22"d September, 2020,

may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for

voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website ,11!-1l'.-ql*ql!-0gl1r11ia-ESUt during the

voting periotl

CIick on "Sliareholders" tab.

Now Enter y.our LJser ll)
a. For CDSL: l6 digits beneticiary ID.

b. For NSDI-: B C'haracter DP ID follorved by B Digits Client lD.

c. Menrbers holcling shares in Physical Irorm should enter Folio Number registered with

the Cornpanv.

Next enter the hnage Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to lvtt,u' n ndia. and

voted on an earlier voting ofany company. then your existing passrvord is to be used
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(viii)
(ix)

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the

company records for the said demat account or folio.
. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If

the details are not recorded with the depository or company please

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Banl< details field

as rnerttioned in instru

After entering these details appropriatcly, click on "SUBMIT" tab

(x)

Members holcling slrares in physical fbrm will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. Horvever'. rrentbers lrolding shares in dernat fbrrl lvill non'reach'Password Creation'

menu wherein they are required to rrandatorily enter their login passlvord in the new password

field. Kindly note that this password is to be also Lrsed by the demat holders for voting for

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote. provided that company

opts for e-voting through CDSL platfbrm. It is strongly recomrnended rrot to share your

password with any otlrer person and take Lltmost care to keep .vour password confidential"

For Members holding shares in ph1'sical fonn, the details can be used onlY' for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name>i.e.Norben Tea & Exports Limited on

which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "ItESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" aTTd against the same the

option "YESNO" fbr voting. Select tire option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies

that you assent to the RcsolLrtion and option NO implies that 1'ou dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLLI f IONS FILE LINK" if yoLr wish to vietv the entire Resolution details.

After selectirrg the resolution yoLr have decided to vote on. click on "SUBMIT"' A

confirmation box rvill be displayed. lf you rvish to corrf'irrn your vote, click on "OK", else to

change your vote. click orr "CANCEL" and accordipgll modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" r-ollr vote ou tlre resolution, you rvill not be allowed to modify your

vote.
you can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here to print"

option on the Voting page.

If Dernat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)
(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
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PAN

DOB

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

Enter your l0 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable tbr both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

. Members who have not updated their PAN with the

Cornpany/Depositor.,- Participarrt are requested to use the first two

letters of their natne and the 8 digits of the seqLlence number in the

PAN tleld.
o ln case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable

number of 0's befbre the number a{ter the first two characters of the

name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with
uence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field

Enter the Date of Birtli as recorded in your demat account or ln
records for the said den,at account or fblio in ddlmmi

SC

the company
format.

Dividend
Bank
Details

(xvii)

IV



(xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders

o Institutional shareholders (i.e. other tharr Individuals, HUF. NRI etc.) are required to log on to

Itttps:r'lwrvr,- .*,v*t.irr,:irtritit.ttriii al1d registel themselves as Corporates.

. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the starxp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk.evoti slindia.cc'ut

a After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance Lrser should be created using the

aclmin login apd passr,vord.'I-hc Complillnce Lrser rvould be able to link the accourrt(s) fbr which

they wish to vote on.

The list of accor-rnts should be mailecl to lrclpdesk.evotingrTlcdslindia.corn and on approval of the

accounts they r.vourld be able to cast their vote.

A scanned cop_v of the Board Resolution and I'ower of Attorney (POA) rvhiclr they have issued in

favour of the Custodian. if anr. should be uploaded in PDI- tbrrnat in the system for the scrutinizer

to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting. you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions ("FAQs") ancl e-voting nturual available at l!]1-U.,S-ya!L!glt.!di-a.com under help

section or write an cmail to lrrlptiesli.evotingtrcdslindia.comor contact them at

1 8002005533.
S|areholders can also cast their votc Lrsing CDSL's mobile app m-Votirlg available for android

based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone

and Windorvs phone users can dou,nload the app fiom the App Store and the Windows

Phone Store respectivell,on or alier 30tl'June 2016. Please follow the instructions as

prornpted by the rnobile app whilc voting on your mobile.

. Members rvho have cast their r ote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are

attending the rneelirrg rvill not be entitlecl to casttheir vote again.

(xix)

(xx)

a

a

III.

IV.

V.

VI.

VII.

VIII

Investors rvho became membcls of the Companl, subsequent to the dispatch of the

Notice / Errnail and holds the sirtres as on the cut-ofl'clate i.e.22''d September.2020,

are reqLlested to send the ri'r'itten / email communicatiorr to the Cornpany at

investorcare@norbentea.corx L;.r' mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID to

olrtain the Login-lD and Passu,,iil lor e-voting.

Sharehotders can also update.rour mobile number and email id in the user profile

details of the folio vrhich maY Ire used for sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of shaleholcler's shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up

equity shaie capital of the Conirany as on the cut-off date of 22nd September,2O20.A

person who is not a ntember r.ri i)lt cut ofTdate should treat this notice for information

pLrrpose only.

Agarr,r,al A & Associates, Corrrpany Secretaries of Plot No.1lDl31ll, Street No.

tft t" pS Qube. Ltnit No. 10l.rA, l0'r'Floor. Kolkata- 70013-5has been appointed as

the Scrutinizcr to sclLrtinize thc remote e-voting and votirrg process to be carried out

at tlre Annual Ceneral Meetittu irl a tair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer lvill subrnit. ::irt later than 2 days of conclusion of the AGM, a

copsolidated Scrutirrizer's Rep,rrt of the total votes cast ilt f-avour or against, if any, to

the Chairman of the CortrPanr'.

T'he Chailnan shall clcciare tl,.'result forthwith.'fhe Results declared alongwith the

Scrutinizer's Repolt shli, be placed on the Company's website
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www.norbentea.comand on the website of CDSL and communicated to the stock
exchange(s), immediately.

B.INSTRUCTION FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM
ARE AS FOLLOWS;-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for Remote e-voting.

Only those Members/sharpholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system

available during the AGM.

If any votes are casted by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM
and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM
facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility
of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the meeting.

C. PROCEDURB FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGI.I VC / OAVM:
. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM or view

the live webcast of AGM through the CDSL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the
.same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members login by using the
remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/
members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the

User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions
mentioned in the Notice.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPads for better
experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed

to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefbre recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

For convenience of the Mernbers and proper conduct of AGM, Members can login and join
at least 30 (thirly) minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM and shall be kept open

throughout the proceedings of AGM.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting
System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual
available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk
evotin e(Acdslindia.com .

a

a

a
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Members attending the AGM through VC /OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

D.PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT
TO ANNUAL REPORT:

As the AGM is being conducted through VC I OAVM, for the smooth conduct of
proceedings of the AGM, members are encouraged to send their queries 10 days before the
date of the AGM i.e.Friday, 18ft September, 2020 by 5.00 p.m from their registered email
ID mentioning their name, demat account number / folio number, mobile number at
investorcare@norbentea.com so as to enable the management to keep the information
ready and replied accordingly.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may
registerthemselves as a speakerby sending email 10 days before the date of the AGM i,e
Friday, l8th September, 2O2O from their registered emaii ID mentioning their name demat
account number / folio number, mobile number to investorcare@norbentea.com. Those
members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ ask questions during the AGM.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
as appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM

a
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Annexure to Notice
f the 2 Act

ITEM NO.3
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on llth November,2Ol9 appointed Mr.
Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN:08599472), as Non-Executive Additional Diiector,of the
Company. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act,2Ol3 read with Article 116 of
the present Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Agarwal holds office as an
Additional Director only up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Agarwal, being eligible has offered himself for appointment as a Director. The Company
received a notice 2nd November, 2019 under Seciion 160 of the Companies Act, 2013,
signifying their intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Agarwal for the office of
Director of the Company

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal is a Member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Share Transf'er Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal aged about 35 years, studied at St. Xavier's College, Kolkata in
Commerce and Accounts (Hons.) and holds a Bachelor's Degree. He is a Chartered
Accountant holding Membership No.300414 of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. He is also a Qualified Company Secretary from Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. He has done Diploma in System Audit from I.C.A.I. He has expertise in the field of
Accounts, Audit, Finance and legal matter.

Pursuant to Section 16l of the Companies Act, 2013 and, in terms of Article l16 of the
Arlicles of Association of the Company, Mr. Agarwal holds office only up to the date of
this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr. Agarwal as a Non-Executive Additional
Director of the Company would be of immense benefit to the Company. Accordingly, the
Board of Directors recommend his appointment as a Non-Executive Director, of the
Company whose period of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by
rotation.

Mr. Agarwal does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any
shares in the Company.

He is not a Director or a Member in any other Company.

The other details of Mr. Agarwal in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation
and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Agarwal's vast knowledge
and varied experience will be of great value to the Compary und has recommended the
Resolution at Item No.3 of this Notice relating to the appointment of Mr. Agarwal as a
Director,.liable to retire by rotation, for your approval.

Except Mr. Agarwal being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.3.

A
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 4 & 5
The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee) had appointed Mr. Deepak Tiwari (holding DIN:08839075) & Ms. Tanusree
Chatterjee (holding DN:08837933) as an Additional Director from24th August, 2020.

In terms of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Article 116 of the Articles
of Association of the Company. Mr. Tiwari and Ms. Chatterjee hold office as an
Additional Director only up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act,
2013, signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Tiwari & Ms. Chatterjee
for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Deepak Tiwari aged about 29 years, studied at Calcutta University in Commerce and
Accounts (Hons.) and holds a Bachelor's Degree. He is a Chartered Accountant holding
Membership No.307752 of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has done
Diploma in System Audit from I.C.A.I. He has expertise in the field of Accounts, Audit,
Finance and legal matter.

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Article 116 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Deepak Tiwari holds office only up to the
date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. He is also appointed as Independent
Director of the Company at its meeting held on29th August, ZOZO suU.lect to approval from
members of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General meeting.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr. Deepak Tiwari as an lndependent
Director of the Company would be of immense benefit. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors recommend his appointment as an Independent Director on the Board of
Directors of the Company whose period of office is not liable to retirement by rotation.

Mr. Deepak Tiwari does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis,
any shares in the Company.

He is not a Director or a Member in any other Company

The other details of Mr. Deepak Tiwari in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Regulation and Secretarial Standad 2 is annexed to this Notice. The Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Deepak
Tiwari's vast knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company and
has recommended the Resolution at Item No.4 of this Notice relating to the appointment of
Mr. Deepak Tiwari as a Director, shall not be liable to retire by rotation, for your approval.

Except Mr. Deepak Tiwari being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.4.

Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee aged about 67 years, studied B.Ed at Calcutta University and
holds a Master Degree in political science from Utkal University, Bhubaneswar. She has
worked for Directors and purchase officer of "Yuki no Cha ya", Tokyo, Japan, for
Darjeeling & Dooars tea production and manufacturing. Her experience in
Procurement/Technical Discussion support, MOM, for NSENGI connected with various
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projects in India will bring new insight. She has been involved with TQM and TPM
activities and audit support in Certification of Quality in Tata Tinplate Co. of India, Tata
Metaliks; MCC PTA, Usha Martin, Adhunik (AAPL) Jamshedpur, Balasore Alloys
(BAL), Tata Hitachi Construction Machinery GMQD (Quality audit) at Kharagpur,
Jamshedpur & Dharvar and has been part of Technical discussion support at Kesoram
Rayon (cellophane plant) and Market Research suppoft for Q&Q and Intage India.

Pursuantto Section 161 of the Companies Act,2073 and in terms of Article 116 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee holds office only up to
the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company. She is also appointed as

Independent Director of the Company at its meeting held on 29rh August, 2020 subject to
approval from members of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General meeting.

The Board considers that the appointment of Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee as an Independent
Director of the Company would be of immense benefit. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors recommend her appointment as an Independent Director on the Board of
Directors of the Company whose period of office is not liable to retirement by rotation.

Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial
basis, any shares in the Company.

She is not a Director or a Member in any other Company

The other details of Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. The Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Ms.Tanusree
Chatterjee's vast knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to the Company
and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.5 of this Notice relating to the
appointment of Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee as a Director, shall not be liable to retire by
rotation, for your approval.

Except Ms.Tanusree Chatterjee being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested,
financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.5.

The other details of Mr. Tiwari & Ms. Chatterjee in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the
Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice. Mr. Tiwari & Ms.
Chatterjee are not related to any Director of the Company.

In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the
opinion that Mr. Tiwari & Ms. Chatterjee fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for
their appointment as an Independent Director. After taking into consideration the
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board is of the
opinion that Mr. Tiwari's & Ms. Chatterjee's vast knowledge and varied experience willbe
of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.4 & 5 of
this Notice relating to the appointment of Mr. Tiwari & Ms. Chatterjee, as an "Independent
Director", not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five consecutive years w.e.f. 29th

August, 2020upto 28tn August,2025, for your approval.
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Mr' Tiwari & Ms..Chatterjee have given a declaration to the Board that they meet thecriteria of independence as provided in_ Section 149(6).i,il. a;;;i;;a.i, zor: uraRegulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regurations. The cornpury has arso received:_(i) the consent in writing to ait as Oirector and(ii) intimation that he/she is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the companies4ct,2013.
(iii) a declaration to the effect that he/she is not debarred from holding the office ofDirector pursuant to any order issued by the Securities uro p*.rring. eou.a orIndia (SEBI).

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Tiwari & Ms. chatterjee, asIndependent Director setting out the teims & conditions would be available for inspectionwithout any fee by the members at the Registered office of the company during normalbusiness hours on any workin g day.

The other details of Mr. Tiwari & Ms. chatterjee, whose appointment are proposed at itemnos' 4 & 5 of the accompanying Notice, have been given in ihe attached annexure.

Mr' Tiwari & Ms. Chatterjee respectively are concerned or interested in the resolutions ofthe accompanying notice relatingto their own appointment.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are concernedor interested in the Resolutions at item ios.4 to 5.

Regd.Office:
1 58, HemantaBasuSarani, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata-700001.

Date:29th August, 2020

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)
DIN: 00123386
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Name of the Director Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal Mr. Deepak Tiwari Ms. Tanusree Chatteriee
Date of Birth 07-09-1985 t2-10-1991 23-07 -t953
Nationalitv Indian Indian Indian
Date of Appointment on
the Board

11fr November,2019 24n August,2O2} 24'n August,2020

Qualifications C.A C.A B.A
Expertise in specific
functional area

Accounts, Finance Accounts, Finance Marketing

Number of shares held in
the Company

Nil Nil Nil

List of the directorships
held in other companies*

Nil Nil Nil

Number of Board
Meetings attended during
the year 2019-20

J NA NA

Chairman/ Memtrer in
the Committees of the
Boards of companies in
which he is Director*

Member in :

l. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
2.Audit Committee
3.Nomination & Remuneration
Committee
4. Share Transfer Committee

Nil Nil

Relationships between
Directors inter-se

None None None

Remuneration details
(Including Sitting Fees &
Commission)

Rs.10,000/- Nil Nil

ANNEXURE TO ITEMS.3,4 and 5 OF THE NOTICB

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting [Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard2 on General Meetings]

*Directorship includes Directorship of Public Companies & Committee membership includes only Audit Committee
and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of Public Limited Company (whether Listed or not).
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN: L0t I32WBl990pLC04899t

REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TO TIIE MEMBERS
Your Directors are pleaseci to present the Thirtieth Annual Report together rvith the clonrpan-y,s AuditedAccounts for the Financial year ended 3l', lvfarch, 2020.

I. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGI{LIGHTS

Iji:rx,:"t'al 
performance of the Company for the year endect on 31.,March, 2020 is summarized

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AF'FAIRS
Desired results were not.achieved during the year for which the local management team has been re-arranged' Further, in the beginning of seuson 2b20 harvest of first flush teas were lost due to lock-downmeasures for Covid-l9.
During April and May 2020 the bushes had to be pruned/skiffed again to get them back in shape after re-opening of lock-down.
The current season oftea production has seen altogether new price levels for tea in 2020.This should augerwell for the company as this should be a turnaroun- y.u..

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year Ended
March 31,

2020
(Rs. in

Year Ended
March 31,2019

(Rs. in
thousand)

Total Revenue
49395 54860

Profit Cost, Depreciation Taxationbefore Finance and
7558Less : Finance Cost

7175 s846Profit/ (Loss) before iation and Tax 1044 t7t2Less : Depreciation
4686 4338(Loss Excepti TaxProfit/ before onal Items and 5133 62Prior Period ture

1 191(Loss )t/Profi Tbefore ax
51 8l

Income Tax for earlier year
Provision of Deferred Tax (Credit)

Less/(Add) Current Tax

262
673 476

200

Profit{Loss ) Tafter ax
60 93

reclassified profitItem that llwl benot to or loss
161relatingIncome tax to itemsthese

58 41Comprehensi ve Income for theTotal
46r3
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3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS,IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the reported financial year.

4. DryIDEND
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2019-20 invier.v of retaining cash for
your Company's growth prospects.

5. TRANSIIER TO GENER{L RESERVE
Appropriation amounts proposed to bc transferred to General Reserve NIL.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company rvhich has
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to whicli the financial statements relate and
the date ofthe report.

T.SIIARE CAPITAL
During the year under review the company has not altered its share capital"

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, an adequate system of intemal controls commensurate with its size,
requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are desigred keeping in view the nature of
activities location and various business operation.

g.DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Being a listed entity, the financial statements are passing through the Audit Committee and the processes of
Intemal and Extemal (Tax, Cost and Statutory) Audits, before being approved at the meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Company. The financial statements are regularly upaateO on the Company,s website and
available to all stakeholders.

IO.NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH IIAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT YENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

As on 3l't March, 2020, your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,
2013.

I2.AUDITORS REPORT
The report by the Auditors is self explanatory and has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board rvere required.

13. SECRETARIAL AUDIT RBPORT
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Apointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board has appointed CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal,
Proprietor of Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, Practicing Company Secretary as its
secretarial auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the FY 2019-20. The Secretariai Auait Report in the
specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Annexure forming part of this Report
The Secretarial Audit Report has a qualificatioq reservation, adverse remark relating to suspension in
trading of equity shares of the Company due to non-compliance of the eligibilily requiiement for
continuous listing and the Company has made an application on 28s May, iOtS to BSE for
revocation of suspension of Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their
approval.
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I4.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION OF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGEEARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information pursuant to Section 134(3xm). of the companies Act, 2013 and Rule g of companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as Annexure Bin the Annexure forming part of this Report.

I5.EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
In terms of provisions of section 92, 134(3), read with Rule l2 of the companies (Management andAdministration) Rules, 2a14, the extract ott tiie Annual Return in Fo.m lvIGT 9 is annexed herervith asAnnexure Cin the Annexure forming part of this Report.

T6.POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The level of operations of the company does not conform to the minimum threshold of corporate SocialResponsibility reporling.

17. DIRECTORS
At present your Board is duly constituted co.|n1i_slng of 4 (Four) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386), Mr' Ranjan-Kumar Jhalaria (DIN:'0535"3976), Mrs.'Swari Agarwal (DrN:06804 522) andMr.Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN: 08599472). M^r.. Balkrisr,ran aturrrur was appoinred as Non-ExecutiveAdditional Director, Independent category of the comp"r, ur?rrl uoard of Directors with effect from I l,hNovember,2019, pursuant to section tot-of th" co-punilr-i,ir.,-zotz,and in terms of Article 116 of theArticles of Association of the company and whose term of office expires at the Annual General Meetingbe and is hereby appointed 

^ u bi.L.tor of the compa.,y *t or" period of office shall be liable todetermination by retirement of directors by rotation. In accoidance wiih the provisions of the companiesAcL 2013 and the Articles of Associatio, Lf th.- co*puny, rtar. rrau"o; Kumar Daga, retires by rotation atthe ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, o#ers himself for re-appointment.

18. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERTAL PERSONNEL WHO WEREAPPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR-
Mrs' Sweta Patodia (Non-Executive Director) resigned r.orn tt 

" 
goard of Directors of the company on 3 l.toctober, 2019' Mr' Balkishan Agarwal IDIN: 08s-9e +lz) ipioiited as Non-Executi;e ;dditional Director,Indeperident catesorv at the meeting of Board or otrectois h;iJ;;-ii; N;ffi;; i.rrr.rn"details ofKey Managerial Personnel who-were appointed or have rerigneJ du.ing the r,nun.iJi"ur are also coveredunder the Report on Corporate Governjnce"

19. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have met 5 (five) times during the financial year on 2g-os-2olg,L3-0g-2019,1l-l l-2019' 11-ll-2019 and 12-02-2020. The maximum tli-,e gap uet*een any two meetings was less than 120days as stipulated under sEBI's Listing Requirements, 20"ri.t;;aiis of meeting are givin in the ,,corporate
Governance Report" of the Annual Report.

2O.SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
f' s-egaiate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on l1-l l-2llg,Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria thelead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Direciors at saiJ meeting review theperformance of the non Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directorstherein are provided in the report on corporate govemance forming part of this report.

2 T.DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Every Independent Director has, at the first meeting of the Board and also at the first meeting of the Boardafter his/her appointment,.in the financial year 2019-2020, given a declaration 

^ i.qulr.d us.l49 of thecompanies Act,2013 that he/she meets thetriteria of Indep.ia.r...

t'7



22.AUDIT COMMITTBE AS REQUIRED U/S177(8) OF COMPANIES ACT,2OI3
Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit committee which had not beenaccepted by the Board.

23.VrGrL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER pOLrCY)
In pursuance to the provisions ofsecti on l7'l(e) & (10) of the Companies Acr, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism fbrDirectors and employees of the Company, to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vi uil
Mechanism (Whistle Blower policy) has been uploaded on the Company's rvebsite al

te l-b

24.POLTCY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION ETC.
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and rentuneration including .rit.r;u fbr determiningqualifications' positive attributes, inclependence of a director and other matters provideci u/s.17g(3) of theCompanies Act, 2013 is given as Annexure Din the Annexure forming part of itrls neport.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
All-the related party transaction are entered_on arm's lenglh basis and are in compliance with theapplicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI-(L9onl {egulations,20l5.There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the company iuring the year.

26. DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR II{\'ESTMENTS BY THB COMPANY
During the year tlere was no loans, guarantees or investments made by the .o*puny u/s. lg6 of thecompanies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is noi-llpricubre.

27.FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individualdirectors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the criteria for performance Evaluation ofthe Directors of the company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration committee of the companyis giVen as Annexure E in the Annexure iorming part of this Report.

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORTA) INDUSTRY STRUCTURB & DEVELOPMENT, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS ANDOUTLOOK
Demand and Supply of tea and fluctuations in tea prices due to shortage or oversupply andcalryover stocks have got a new dimension in the near future due to thelmpact of COVID-I9pandemic' Tea prices are at new levels due to shortage of production as lock down and restrictions
were imposed form March 24,2020. on reopening tia buihes had to u" p.rn"rlrtiffed once again
and production ofseason 20 restarted in phased minner.

Further, due to the Cyclone Amphan in mid May 20 stocks of tea at warehouses in Kolkata have

*:1"*:",^"j 
and tea auction schedule was disrupted. Tea market should stabilise with the progress

oI Ine season.

b) RISK AND CONCERN
To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued andadheringto all preventive measures, has been u n.*ihallenge. Tie employees of the Company atall levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss oflife or fixed assets.

The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall, itsdistribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield. Sincetimely information of weather plays a vital role for initiiing steps towards application offertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estates- to get the weather information
well in advance.
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c) COVID-19 PANDBMIC
l) Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on the business _

The lock dorvn and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID l9 pandemic
have been complied with by the Company. Production and sale of tea r,vas affected due to
lock down from 24-03-2020.Typically, about half the quantity of high value first flush teas
are produced in the last l0 days in lvlarch.

2) Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces functioning
and closed down -
The Company partially resumed operations at its Tea estate from mid April 2020 as per
permissions from local authorities ensuring strict compliance to the guidelines issued and
also adhering to all preventive measures as per various Govemment directives.

3) Schedule, ifany, for restarting the operations _
The operations of the Company restarted in line withthe directives of the Central & State
GoVt and other regulatory authorities. The tea bushes had to be pruned/skiffed once again
and will sta( yielding new leaves in a while.

4) Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations _
Strict measures ensuring social distancing, hygiene practices and sanitization to ensure
safety of workers / employees at workplace, a.i Leing ione.

5) Estimation of the future impact of CovID-l9 on its operations
Health and hygiene practices have evolved owing to the Pandemic. Regular field practices
have resumed and productivity and growth of te; has reached normal levels. There should
not be much drop in value of teas produced in the first quarter of F.y. 2020, the prices
remaining remunerative due to no carryover stocks in the supply chain or with tea buyers.

6) 
_ 

Details of impact of CoVID-19 on listed entity,s:
I. capital and financial resources

There has not been any loss of capital and financial resources of the company.
Timely financing by Covid line of Credit has helped maintaining flow of *oiting
capital for arranging all inputs in time.

II. profitability

With the progress of the tea growing season the estate of the company shall be able
to generate total revenue at normal level. Cost of fuel is lower compaied to last few
years and the support by Govt. of India by Provident Fund employer Contribution
reduction from 17Yo to 10% shouid help as wages constitute u iurg" portion of
expenses.

III. Liquidity position

The liquidity position of the company is comfortable.

rv. Ability to service debt and other financing anangements

The Company shall be able to service its debt and other financing arrangements.

V. Assets

All Fixed Assets and Current Assets of the Comp any are safe. All employees at all
levels are safe.\ r -J
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d)

e)

f)

s)

VI. Intemal financial reporting and control

Intemal financial reporting and control are in place and functioning with full
connectivity.

VII. Supply chain

Supply chain has continued as movement of teas and tea garden personnel rvare
among the first to re start in a phased manner. Manures, t*t o;t and all essential
inputs for health care ofbushes have been available.

VIII. Demand for its products/services

Demand for the Company's tea is good and vibrant.

7) Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party
will have significant impact on the risted entity's Business.
The Company does not enter into forwardlfuturi contracts for it's produce as a policy. The
loss in production value of first flush teas in season 2020 should be recovered within July
2020 with the present prices and production levels.

8) other relevant material updates about the listed entity,s business
The company has been able to maintain its business relaiions with its esteemed customers,
Govt. authorities and work force at all levels.

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provide reasonable assurance with regard to safeguaraing the
Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, prev-enting ,.r"ir" leakages
and ensuring adequate financial and accounting contiols and compliance witf, various statutory
provisions.

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvlments for
strengthening them.

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the
Report of the Directors.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has built its workforce with a diverse background of individuals - essential for the
kind of organization thal it is" The Company constantly i-rd.uror.s to provide a platform where
people have opportunities to aclualize their maximum potential through work which helps to
stretch their intellect. Continuous efforts are on for a woik-culture whiJ encourages innovation,
transparency in communication, trust and amity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company,s
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking State]ments,,within the
meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the cirrrently held beliefs and
assumptions of our managemen! which are expressed in good faith and in their opinion, reasonable.

h)
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30.

31.
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Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the company's operations areinfluenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the company. Several factors
could make a significant difference to the company's operations which includes climatic conditio.s,economic conditions affecting demand and suppiy, government regulations ancl taxation, natural
calamities, raw material price changes, domestic iupprv and prices .onditionr, company,s success inattracting and retaining Key Personnel, integration andre-structuring activit;"r. g.n"ruiuusiness andeconomic conditions over which the company does not have any direct control.

RISK IVIANAGEMENT POLICY
The Board of Directors of the company has developed and implemented a risk management policyfor the company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the Jpinion of theBoard, may threaten the existence of the company. The Board moniiors and revieu,,s'feriodically
various aspects of Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk rvhose adverse impactmay threaten the existence of the Conrpany is visualized

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKSHOP
Your company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that very womenemployee is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero- tolerance towards sexualharassment invites serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policyallows every employee to freely report any such act and promote action will be taken thereon. Thepolicy lays down severe punishment for any such-act. Further, your Directors state that during theyear under review, there were no cases of sexual harassment i.po.t"o to the Company pursuant tothe sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, proiibition and Redressaf ict, zot:.

l.

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by theregulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and .o*puny,, operations infuture.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATBMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Section l3a(3)(c) & 134(5) of the companies Act, 2013,your Directors confirm that:

Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for
the year ended 31't March, 2020 with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.
Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have
been made which are-rgasonable and prudent and have been applied so"as to glo. u t.u, and fairview of the state of affairs of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 3l't March, 2020
and of the losses of the Company for that period. 

-

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the pro.visions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the aiets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31't March, 2020 have been prepared on the basis of going
concern concept.

The Directors have laid down the intemal financial controls to be followed by the company
||i:llf 1: |olj:i".| and procedures and these internal financial controls are aiequate and are
berng operated ellbctively.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and such systems are adequate and operating effeitively

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
COI.IRTS/TRTBUNALS

ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/

n.

lv.

I lI.

v

VI
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33. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERAT'rON U/S.197 (12) OF THE COMPANTES
ACT, 2OI3 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANTES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
oF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2011

S.No Name Designation

o//o

increase
in

refilLtner
ation

Ratio of the
remuneration of
each director :

nredian
remuneration of
the employees

I Manoj Kumar Daga Managing Director NIL 5.53: I
2 Ranjan KumarJhalaria Director NIL 0.21 : I
aJ Sr.vatiAgarwal Director NIL 0. I 8:1
4 SwetaPatodia # Director NIL 0.00: I
5 BalkrishanAgarwal $ Director NIL 0.08: I
6 DipaChatterjeeSarkar CFO 10.97
7 Mira Halder Company Secretary 65.87

# Mrs. Sweta Patodia resigned on 31" October, 2019.
$ Mr' Balkrishan Agarwal was appointed on llth November,20l9 as Non-Executive Additional
Director, lndependent Category.

The Company has 9l employees as on 3l't March, 2020.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NIL%.
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase in
managerial remuneration is 29.86: 1.

Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between
Workers Associations, State Government and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration
paid to other Employees are fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneratitn paid is as per
the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31,2020 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule
5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnei) Rules,20l4.

35. AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of corporate govemance is given as Annexure Fin the
Annexure forming part of this report.

36. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-l) and Generai MeetingJ (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia (ICSD.
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37. STOCK EXCHANGE(S)
The application for revocation of suspension in trading of Equity Shares of the company at Bombay Stock
Exchange is awaiting their approval. The Equitl' Shaies of ihe company are tradecl ar the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

38. APPRECIATION
The Directors rvish to place on record their appreciation tbr the supporl received from the Local Gram
Panchayat, Government Departments, Banks, Stakeholders and all ott-,.rr. Special thanks and appreciation
a.re conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
trmes.

Regd.Office:
l58, HemantaBasuSarani. 3'd Floor
Kolkata-700001.
Date :l l'h July, 2020.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Chaiman &Mg. Direcror)

DIN: 00123386
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sEcRErl?flLT";#tLpoRr
For The Financial Year Ended On 3lst March, 2020

(Pursuant to.section 201(1) of the Componies Act, 2013 anclRule No. 9 oJ'the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration personnel) Rules, 2014

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-B, HemantaBasuSarani,
3rd FIoor, Kolkata-700001

we have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & ExportsLimited(L0l132w81990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct SecretarialAudit ofthe company for the financial year ended 3 l st March ,2020.

we have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions andthe adherence to good corporate practices by Norben Tea & Exiorts Limited (hereinaftercalled
the company) having its Registered office at 15-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor,Kolkata-
J00.001, 

West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonablebasis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinionthereon.

Based on our verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filedand other records maintained by the Company and aiso information provided u/flre company, itsofficers, agents and authorized representativLs during the conduct Lf secretarial audit, wherebyreport that in our opinion,-the company has, during ihe audit period .or..inf tne financial year
ended on 31st March, 2020, complied with the statitory provisions listed herJrnder and also thatthe company has proper Board-processes_and compliance-mechanism in place to ttre extent, in themanner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and otherrecords maintained by Norben Tea & Exports LimitJrl ("the company,; ro. it e financial year
ended on 3lst March, 2020 according to the provisions ofl

(i) The companies Act,2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

ANNEXT]RE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANI,'{EXURE .4A,)
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder tothe extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment ancl Extemal Commercial
Borrowings;-(Not applicable tothe company during the Audit periort)

(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Boardof India Act,1992 ('SEBI Act,)
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition ol shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 201 l;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations , 2Al5;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of In<lia (lssLre of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009. (Not applicable to the compiny during the Auclit
period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock oprion Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, torio. iuot applicai,te to the company
during the Audit period).

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations. 2008'fVot applicable to the componJ) during *e aiait period).

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India. (ilegistrars ti an issue und Shu.. Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (belisting of Equity sfiu..r; Regulations,
2009; Qt{ot applicabre to the company during the Auiit period).

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of InJia (Buyback of 3ecurities) Regulations,
1998:' (Not applicable to the company during rhe Audit period).

(vi) ]hi following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the company asper the Management Representation letter issued by the .o*puny of Lven date:_

(a) The Tea Act, 1953 and rules thereunder
(b) The Food Safety and Standard Act,2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules, 2011.
(c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959
(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order, 2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the -ompaiy with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limitei.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above" Subject to the following observation

(i) The Bombay Stock Exchange has suspended trading of Equity Shares of the Company
due to non compliance of the eligibility requirement fo; continuous listing and the
Company ha^s_made an application on 28th May,2018 to BSE for revocation of
suspension of Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their approval.
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The Equity Shares of the Company are traded at the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

(ii)Mrs' Swati Agarwal and Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Independent Directors of the
Company has been re-appointed as an Independent Director of the con.rpany for the
second term of five consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion ;i rirA;r;;l
General Meeting till the Annual General iv{eeting for the Financial year ended 3lst
March, 2024.

(iii) There was Re-constitution of Board of Directors and committee of Board of Directors(Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Commiftee, Nomination
&Remuneration Committee and Share Transfer Committee) rlue to resignation of
Mrs'Sweta Patodia, Non Executive Director of the Company lv.e.f. 3 ll10lz0l9 anilappointment of Mr. Balkishan Agarrval, Non gxecutive Additional Director
w.e.f.l tlttt20t9.

We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of ExecutiveDirectors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition ofthe Board of Directors that took place during the Audit period were carriJcl out in compliance withthe provisions of the Act.

(ii)Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exiis for seeking andobtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and formeaningful participation at the meeting.

(iii)All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recordedin the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Director. J. Co**ittee of the Board, as the case
may be.

We further report that, having regard to the- compliance system prevailing in the company and onexamination of the relevant documents and records in pursuanci thereofl on test-check basis, thecompany has complied with the raws applicable specifically to the company.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitoi and ensure co*ptiun." with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period there are no specific events /actions which have amajor bearing on the Company,s affairs.

Place: Kolkata
Date: l0thJuly,2020

FoTAGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No" :F7604

UDIN NO. : F007604B000435526

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and forms
an integralpart of this report.
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Our report of even date is to be read along rvith this letter.

I' Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these secretaiial records based on our audit.

2' we have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretariai records. The verification wasdone on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion"

3' We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4' Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5' The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. our examination was limited to the verification ofprocedures on test basis.

6' The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company norof the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-8, HemantaBasuSarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001

company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: l0thJuly,2020

.ANNEXURE A'

FoTAGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No. :F7604

UDIN NO. : F007604800043s526
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ANNEXURE. (68"

A OFP
S

(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014

A. Conservation of
i)

operations involve substantial consumption of energy rvhen compared to the cost ofWherever possible energy conservation and efficien"/*"urr...-tur" t""n undertaken.

on
Company's
production.

Tea
The S bus NCSS vesinvol ofuseCompany' onl for nalfienergy v of leaproc FVCS. oressrng glowlngTof leaea the rel ISlance onmore natural resources of onthan foss fuels.ii) uti

up-gradationThe Company constantly considers of existing machineries and processes to optimiseuse of alternate sources of energy for processing of Tea leaves. Availability of natural gas throughpipeline or bullet tanker is eagerly awaited, which the Company can readily use at a much lower costto both the and the environment
ii i) on

For all new equi
term runnin

wepments ISpurchased, ven toightage conservationgi electriof cal reducetoenergy
costs.

B. Technology absorption

i)
Tea

recommendations.

certifications Alliance

The tosubscribes theCompany Research andAssociation theirimplements andguidance
The nohas R&DCompany u asnit such.Further themore, S lnCompany moungthe direction of such as FRain 'orest foland thelows Plant Protection Code,Maximum Residue Levels and the Trustea Code.

ii)
substitution;

has
r producedlist

The hectareper cost insecticiof des and used forpesticides ln teaspraylng areasgIowlng
reduced. itemsthe lnOnly theappeanng areapproved us €d, which theby Company's

becomehas with more markets different
iii)

be of

The details ofa I : NIL
b The of NIL

Whether the been absorbedc NA
If not iully
the reasons

d) areas whereabsorbed, abs has takennotorption andace,pl
and NA

iv)
As covered under item above.

C. and Ou

Nil

ln
of
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ANNEXURE . 6.C''

MGT -9

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTTVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

ilr. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,SUBSIOIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES .

lv. SHARE HOLDTNG PATTERN (Equity share capitar Breakup as percentage of rotar Equity)

0 Category-wise share Holding

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 3 1'tMar ch 2020

fPursuant to section 92{3) of the companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(l) of the companies
(Management and Administration) Rules ,20l4l

il.

L AND R DETREGISTRA
CIN 0L 11 132WB 04899199OPLC

Date 14-05-1990
Name of the Co NO RBEN 6.TEA RTSEXPO LTD(iv) theof PUBLIC LI ITED COMPANY

(v) Address of the Registered office
nd contact

MANTA
KATA

t HB E BASU SARAN Floor
KOL 700 00 ELT NO, 22 00553Whether Com

(vii)
details of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any.

Name, Address and Contact

o45.
4050

E-mail:

S.No Name and Description of main NIC Code of the
Product/service C

Yo to total turnover of the

I Tea 0902 100

S.No Name and
Address of
the

CIN/GLN ubsidiary/AssociateHolding/S Yo of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

NIL

Category of
Shareholders

No.of held at beginning of the year No.of held at the end of year
Change
during

the year

1

Covemment

Demat Physical Total o/o of
Total
Shares

Demal Physical Total o/o of
Total
Shares

(k)

State

BankslFinancial
35551 97 0 35551 30.257 97 0 197

2q

MCS
Lake383, Gardens, Kolkata-700

0334072Telephone; 4051 Fax: 033-4072

products/services



Z
(.) NRIs - lndividuals

6037958 0 6037958 51.387 60,14759 0 6044759 51.445 0.058

(b)
(c)
(d)

fet-

- Individuals
Bodies
Banks,/Financial
Institutions

Other

0
Total
Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter Group
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

6037958 0 5037958 51.387 6044759
0
0 51.445 0.058

B.

E
(a)
(b)

Public
Shareholding

0
I 1

0
5 0

1

1

0
1

100
0.1 15 0.

(c)
(d)
(e) Venture Capital

Funds

0

(0

(q)

lnsurance
Companies

(h) Foreign VbntLrre
Capital Funds

I

lo
0-

424788

900_rii
----9900

0.123
900

14400

-

900 0.008
0.123

0.000
0.001

(i)
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
upto Rs.1

2429658 251 1806 4941464 42.055 2474152 | 2487106 4961258 | 42.223

-0.227

T(iD

shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of
Rs.

Others

282271

I
0

0

0
0

28227

0

2.402 282271

1

0 282271 2.402 0.000

0.000 |

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(BX1)r(BX2)

3175936 25361 06 5712042 48.613

0

2511406 5705241 48.555

0.000
-0.059
-0.058

c. Shares held by
Custodians for
GDRs & ADRs

,|
0.000

9213894 2536106 11750000 ',00.000 9238594 2511406 1 1 750000 100.000 0.000

3o

6044759

3193835



(ii) Shareholding of promoters

e in Prom oters' Shareholdi lease if there is no
Chan

st.
No.

Sharehotders Name Shareholding at the of the Shareholding at fl-re end of the year

No of
Shares

% of total
Shares of
the
company

of Shares
pledged/
encumbered
to total
shares

0

No of
Shares

587343

% oftotal
Shares of
the
company

% of Shares
pledged/
encumbered
to lotal
shares

7o Change
ln
shareholdin
g during the
year 

i

3.

Manoj Kumar
DagaHuf

45946 0.391 0

0

45946

67

0.391

4 913
5.703

0

0

0 000
0 000

000
5

6

7

Mangalam Products
Pvt Ltd

120501
1 205950

1.026
'10.263

I

0

0

1

1 205950
1.026

10.263 0 0.000

8 PallaviDaga 488416 4.157 0 488/.16
19.240
4.157 0

0.000
I Anjum lnvestrnents

Pvt. Ltd.
0.7u 0 88597 0.754 0 0.000

51.387 0 6044759 51.445 0 0.058

Shareholding at the
of the

Sharehold ing
the

S.No Particulars Date

No.of
Shares

% oftotal
Shares ofthe
Company

No.of
Shares

%o oftotal
Shares ofthe
Company

At the of the 0 r-04-2019 587343 4.999
Date wise Increase/Decrease in promoters
Share holding during the year specifoing the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.allotment /
transfeubonuVsweat etc.

No changes during the year

587343 4.999
At the end of the

2 Kumar Daga HUF

At the of the 0t-04-2019 45946 0.391
Date wise Increase/Deffease
Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.allotment /

in Promoters

transfer/bonuVsweat
No changes during the year

At the end of the
45946 0.3913 Jyoti Daga

At the of the 0l-04-2019 s77300 4.913
Date wise IncreaselDecreaG
Share holding during the year speciSing the
reasons for increase/decrease (e. g.allotment /

Promoters

transferlbonus/sweat etc.

No changes during the year

4

At the end ofthe year
577300 4.913

Shanti Devi

At the of the 0l-04-2019 663255 5.645
A 05-04-2019 2500 0.021 665755 5.666B l2-04-2019 305 I 0.a26 668806 s.692C 2t-06-2019 900 0.008 669706 5.700D

Share holding during the year speciling the
reasons for increasey'decrease (e. g.allounint /
transfer/bonuVsweat equity etc.): Transfer

Date wise Promoters

30-06-2019 350 0.003 6700s6 5.703
At the End of the

670056 5.703

3l

2.
0

Manoi Kumar Daqa
663255 0

88597



5 Manoj Kumar Daga

0r-04-2019 I 2050 I t.026

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specitying the
reasons tbr increase/decrease (e.g.allotment /
trans l-er,&onu Vs*,e at

No changes during the 1.car

At the End of the
I 2050 l 1.026

6 Mangalam Products P\,1. Ltd.

At the of the 01-04-2019 1 205950 10.263

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifoing the
reasons for increase/decrease (e. g.allotmcnt /
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)

No changes during thc 
-r car

At the end ofthe year 1205950 10.263
7 Tongani Tea Company Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 0 1-04-201 9 226A650 19.240
Date in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifoing the
reasons lor increase/decrease (e g.allotment /
lransler,6onus/sweat etc.

No changes during the year

22606s0 19.240
8

0l-04-2019 488416 4.157

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year speciling the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.allotment /
transfer/bonuVsweat equity etc.):

No changes during the year

At the end of the year 4884 l6 4.157
9 Anjum Investqrgnts h,t. Ltd.

At the beginning of the year 0 I -04-201 I 88597 0.754
Date wise Increase,/Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the year specifing the
reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.allotment /
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.):

No changes during the year

At the end ofthe year 88597 0.754
(ir) Shareholding Pattem oftop ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

S.No For Each ofthe Top I0 Shareholders

Atthe 239864 2.041

Date

0 0

Shareholding at the beginning of
the

Cumulative Shareholding
the

Constructions Pr.t Ltd
of the

No.of
Shares

% oftotal Shares
of the Company

No.of
Shares

% of total
Shares ofthe

I

DaJe wise lncreasey'Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

No changes during the year

2.

2.041

128467 r.093

239864

0 0

At the End ofthe year or on the date of
if the

KumarDalmia& Sons Huf
Atthe of
Date wise Increase{Decrease in Share
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat equify etc.)

No changes during the year

At the End of the year (or on the date of
lgparation, ifseparated during the year)

128467 1.093

3L

At the beginning ofthe vear

-{t the end olthe year

PallaviDaga

At the beginning ofthe year



MP Vora Shares And Sec p Ltd
At the the

I 00304 0.851 0

-l

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ hansfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

0

No changes during the vear

At the End of the year (or on the date of
if the

MansiKadam I 00304 0.8i1

At the ol the 39250 0.331
Date u,ise Increase,Decrease in Share

0 0

holding during the year speci fy lng the
reasons lor lncrease /decrease ( No changes during rhe yearallotment/ tra.nslerr'bonus /sweat

4

At the End ofthe year or on the date of
if the

39250 0.334

At the of the 392s0 0.334Date wise lncrease/Decrease in Share
0 0

holding during the year specifying the
reasons for lncreaSe /decrease (e.g. No changes during the yearallotment/ transfer,/bonus /sweat

5

At the End ofthe year (or on the date of
if the

arda 39250 0.334

At the of the 2ts7 I 0.1 84Date wise 0 0tn
holding during the year speciffing the
reasons for lnclease /decrease (,e.g. No changes during the yearallotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat

6"

At the End olthe year (or on the date of
if the

Jameel Ahmed Shariff 2157 | 0.1 84

At the of the 2066t 0.176Date Increase/Decrease Share
0 0

during ttre year specifing the reasons for
increxe / decrease (e.g. allotmenV transfer / No changes during the year
bonus / etc.

7

At the End of the year (or on the date of
if the

20661Peter Marcel Lobo 0.176

At the of the 20250 0.172

8.

Date wise Increasey'Decrease in Share
holding during the year specirying the
reasons for lncrease /decrease (e.g.
allotmenir transfer/bonus /sweat etc.

No changes during the year

At the End ofthe
9. 20250VarshaJaiswal 0.172

At the the 20000 0.1 70Date wise Increase/Decrease Shareln
holding during the year specifing the
reasons for increase /decrease (,e.g.
al lotmenV transfer/bonus /sweat equity etc.)

0 0

No changes during the year

At the End of the year (or on the date of
if the

20000M A Mohomedh AIi 0.t70

At the ofthe r3483 0.115 0 0

r0.

Date wise Increase,lDecrease in Share
holding during the year speci$ing the
reasons for mcrease /decrease (e.g.
allotment/ transfer/bonus /sweat

No changes during the year

End ofthe year (or on the date ofAt the
if the

13483 0.1 l5

33



Shareh of Directors and M

the beginning ofShareholding at
the

Cumulati ve Shareholding
the

S.No Particulars Date

No.of
Shares

oZ of total Shares
of the Company

No.of
Shares

I

o/o oltotal
Shares of the
Companv

.At the

Kumar MD
ofthe

during the lear
i ncrease/decrease

lotmenUlransf'er,&onus/srveal

Date Increase,lDecrease hareS holding
thespec !in reas()ns lbr

ctc

0l-04-20t9

I 2050 I 1.026

0 0

No changcs dtrrinp rhe -rerr

I 2050 I 1.026

At the End olthe y,ear

DipaChatrerjceSarkar, CFO2

0 I -04-201 9 0 0.000 0 0

At the beginni ol the year
wlseDate inIncrease/Decrease hold lng

theduring theyear forreasonsspecifying
lncrease decrease e.( lotment transferg.al
bonus sweat

No changes during the 1 ear

0 0

At the End of the

V" INDEBTEDNESS

lndebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/a ccrued but not due for payment

vt.
A.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY
Remuneration to Whole-time

MANAGERIAL PERS ONNEL
and/or M

Secured Loans
excluding

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits otal lnd

lndebtedness at beginning of thethe financ ial year

Amount 25436626 38800000 0ll 64236626Interest due but not d 0 14 0I 609014Interest accrued but not due 0 0Total II 25436626 39409014 0 6484s640einl btedness ancialCha n the

0 128863s2 12886352
664083 0 0 664083han 6il083 128 0 12222269at the end the finanln I r

Amount 24772543 51025000 0Interest due but not 0 1 n 0accruedInterest notbut due 0 0 UT U
24772543 52295366 n 770679A9

st.
No.

1

Particulars of Remuneration Name of

M Kumar
660000

Total Amount

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the lncome{ax Act, 1961

660000

(b)
tax

Value of perquisites u/s 1 7(2) lncome-
1

(c) P in lieu of under section
,|17 lncome-tax I

U

2.
J.
4.

5.

- aS o/o Ot
- oth

rqtal(A)
Ceilinq as per the Act

660000
4200000

660000
4200000

Zq
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B Remuneratton to other Directors

C. Remuneration to Man Personnel other than M

TIES / UNDINGOF OFFENCES

SI
No

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

1 lndependent Directors Ranian Kumar Jhalaria Swati Aqarwal
Fee for attending Board/ Committee
meetinqs

25000 22000 47000

Commission 0
0

0
0

0
0Others (please specifu)

Total (1) 25000 22000 47040
2. Other Non-Executive Directors BalkrishanAqarwal SwetaPatodia

Fee for attending Board/ Committee
meetings

10000 0 1 0000

Commission 0 n 0

Others (please specify) 0 0 0

Total (2) 1 0000 0 1 0000
Total (B)= (1+2) 35000 22000 57000
Total Manaqerial Remuneration
Overall Ceilinq as per the Act

Total AmountKey Manaqerial PersonnelSl.No. Particulars of Remuneration
DipaChatterjeeSarkar,

CFO
Mira Halder, CS

s28000 942000Gross Salary 4140001

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the lncome-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites
uls.17(2) lncome-tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) lncome-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Ootion2.
Sweat EquityJ.

4. Commission
as % of profit
others, specify

5. Others, please specify
942000414000 528000Total

Type Section of
the

Companies

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty i
Punishment

Compounding fees
imposed

Authority
IRD/NCLT/C

ouRTl

Appeal made, if any
(give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty

Nil Nil Nit Nit NitPunishment
Compoundinq
B. DIRECTOR
Penalty

Nit Nil Nit Nil NitPunishment
Compoundinq
G. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

Nil Nil Nir Nil NilPunishment

Regd.Offlce:
tsd, HemantaBasuSarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date : 11h July, 2020

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)

DIN: 00123386
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ANNEXURE:..D,,

The Remuneration Policy of Norben Tea & Exporls Ltd. (the "Companr'"). is designed ro attract,motivate and retain e'rceptional enplovees in a competitir.,e rnaiket. fn. poliJy reflects the
Compan,v's objectives for good corporate governance as r.vell as sustairred long-ierrn value creation
for shareholders.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Introduction

Sittin Fees

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balancebetlveen fixed and incentive pay rvhich reflect short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Director(s) are being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies Act.2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level withcomparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members, required
competencies, efforts and the scope of the board function, including the number of meetings.

Fixed remuneration
whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic
perqursites rvhich is approved by the shareholders of the Company at a General Meeting.

The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the company
keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and compiexity.
Incentive programme. bonus pay. etc.
Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.
Reimbursement of exoenses
Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.
Pension scheme
The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme"RPYgNPR4rroN ro orHPR LTheNomination&Remunerationco*ingtheremunerationof
the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in
comparable companies.

other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of
the following components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus
" Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal"
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure"

z6



Personal benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits, including
company car, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. The
extent of individual benefits are not necessarily same for each individuai member of tlie Executive
Management.

other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
" Accident insurance
" Health insurance
'' Directors and Officers Liabilitv Insurance

Notice of termination
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice on either side.
Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension rth"-. under provident iund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
rn"NmitsproposaIsconcemingtheremunerationof
other employees and ensures that the remuneration is in llne with the conditions in comparable
companies.
Other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components:
" Fixed salary
" Bonus

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Other
HousingAlousing Repair Allowance.
Notice oftermination
As per the prevailing laws of the State Government.
Redundancy pay
As perthe prevailing laws of the State Govemment"
Retirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

and
The Company will follow
and under Regulation
determining quali fications,

the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV ofthe Companies Act,2013
l9(a) of the Listing Regulationwith the
positive attributes and independence of director,
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ANNEXURE. 6(E))

THE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CF THE
DIRECTORS OF THE CO}IPANY

The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Rer,uneration Committee is
responsible to create a process for making such assessment to report annually to the Board on the
results of the assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees of the Board shall annuaily conduct a selt--assessment of their
performance and respective Terms of Reference.
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its orvn performance and that of its Committees and
Individual Directors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Company will follorv a seven step system of the follorving processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
Clearly identified objectives rvill enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and
make decisions about the scope of the review. Such issues as the complexity of the performance
problem, the size of the board, the stage of organisational life cycle and significant developments in
the firm's competitive environment will determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate.
Who will be evaluated?
With the objectives for the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be
reviewed to meet them.
The Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees),
individual directors (including the roles ofchairperson and/or lead independent director), and key
govemance personnel (generally the CFO and company secretary).
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to
achieve those objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation becoming specific. It is now
necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number of specific topics to ensure that the evaluation
(1) clarifies any potential problems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests
the practicality of specific govemance solutions, wherever possible. This is necessary whether the
board is seeking general'or specific performance improvements and will suit boards seeking to
improve areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competencies and motivation, or even
boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Intemally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, other management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements of a
company's govemance system.
Extemally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review.
Similarly, in some situations, government departments, major customers and suppliers may have
close links with the board and be in a position to provide useful information on its performance.
What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available,
boards may choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate
person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an intemal one, the chairperson commonly
conducts the evaluation. However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate
either to a non-executive or lead director, or to a board committee. In the case of extemal
evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with expertise in the areas ofcorporate
govemance and performance evaluation may lead the process.

What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives
are focused entirely on the board, board members will simply discuss the results among
themselves.
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ANNEXURE:"F"

AUDITORS' COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(CIN:L0l I 32WB 1990PLC048991)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by lYorben Tea
& Exports Ltd. ("the Company"), for the year ended on 31't March, 2020, as stipulated in
relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, of the said Company with stock exchange.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, read with the matter described hereinabove, we certify that the Company has eomplied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of Security and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('the Regulations'), of the said Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

41, N. S. Road,
4th Floor, Room No.404,
Kolkata - 700 001.

Place : Kolkata
Dated : The 1lth Day of July,2020

For L.K.BOHANIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRNo" 3l7l36E

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No: 304011
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I

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 3a(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulation")

Company's Philosophy
Your Company has alr.l'ays believed in the concept of good corporate governance
involving transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity rvith a view to
enhancing shareholders value. The Company has professionals on its Board of Directors
who are actively involved in the deliberations of the board on all important policy matters.

1 Board of Directors
The Company has an efficient and rvell appointed Board. The Committees are all duly
formed.Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary of the Company, acts as the Secretary to all
the committee meetings of the Company. All committee meetings are attended by such
other Executives as required.

Composition of Board
The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director and at least 50% of the
total number of Directors are Independent Directors who bring independent views/opinions
in the Board's deliberations and decisions.
During the financial year 2A19-2020 the Board met 5 (five) times. The gap between any
two did not exceed 120

*Y- Yes
# Mrs. SwetaPatodia resigned on 3 I't October, 20 l9 and

$ Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal was appointed on l1s November,20l9 as Non-Executive Additional Director,
Independent Category.

The information as ired under Schedule V of ation is as under:

lllqded byS.ilo. of
of
of

Date
Meeting
Boord
Directors

Mr.ManojKumarDaga Mr. Ranjan
Kumar
Jhalaria

Mrs.Swali
Agarwal

Mrs.SwetaPatodia# Mr.
BalLrishanAgarual$

1 28-05-
20t9

Y Y Y

2 13-08-
2019

Y Y Y

3 I l-l l-
2019

Y Y Y Y

4 I l-l l-
2019

Y Y Y Y

5 l2-02-
2020

Y Y Y Y

Name

Relationships
between
Directors
Inter-se

Category Designation

No. of
Board

Meetings
attended

No. of
other

Director-
ship held

Total No. of Membership/
Chairmanship held including

the Company

Attendance
at last

AGM

Membershi
p

Chairmanship

Mr. Manoj
KumarDaga

Not related
&Promoter

Executive
Director

Managing
Director
(liable to retire
by rotation)

5 5 3 2
Yes

Mr.RanjanKuma
rJhalaria

Not related
Independent &
Non+xecutive
Director

Director 5 2 2 Yes

Mrs.SwatiAgarw
al

Not related
Independent &
Non-executive
Director

Director 5 2 Yes
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Mrs.
SrvetaPatodia #

Not related
Non-executive
Director

Director (liabie
to retire by
rotation )

2 No

Mr.
BalkrishanAgar
rval S

Not related
Non-erecutive
Director

Director (liable
to retire by
rotation)

3 2 No

S.N Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:00123386)

Listed Entities of Directorsh
1 Joonktollee Tea &.Industries Ltd. Non-Executive
2 Tongani Tea Company Ltd. Non-Executive

# Mrs. SwetaPatodia resigned on 3l October,2019 and
$ Mr. BalkrishanAganval was appointed on llth November,20l9 as Non-Executive Additir:nal Director,
Independent Category.

The names of the listed entities rvhere the person is a llirector and the category of
directorship.

None of the Non-Executive Directorsand Independent Directors hold any shares in the
Company.
Number of committees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies,
foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be
excluded"
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees nor Chairman
of more than 5 committees [as per Regulation 26(lXb) of Listing Regulation] across allthe
public limited companies in which he/she is a Director.
MembershipiChairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
commiffee of all the Public Limited companies have been consideredonly.
All the Directors have made the requisite disclosures regarding Committee positions
occupied by them in other companies. The Board of Directors of the Company consisting 4
Nos. of Directors as on 31.03.2020. Out of them I Managing Director, 1 Non-Executive
Director and 2 Independent Directors"

Relationship between the Directors inter:-se:

Name of the Director Name of other Director Name of Relationship
NA

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other.

Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors of the
Company in their own name, as on March 31r2020 are as follows:

Name of the Director I.{o of Equity Shares
Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria Nil
lqali Agarwal Nil
BalkrishanAgarwal Nil

FamiliarisationProgramme imparted to Independent Directors
The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations, has taken initiatives to familiarize its Independent Directors with the
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in
which the company operates, business model of the company etc. through various
programs.
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x om encies of the Board of Directors
Skills and its description

3.

Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board. the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the Management
The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors are fulfill the conditions
which is specified in the Regulation 25 of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and are independent of the Management of the
Company.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors and the composition,
powers, terms of reference and the role of the Committee were laid out to comply with the
requirements of the Listing Regulation, and with the spirit of Corporate Governance. The
Audit Committee also complies with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013
and performs all the roles as specified in the Listing Regulation. However, brief
description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

5
5!

'a
d
z

a
rJ

50

d

bo

a

Leadership experience of running enterprise -
Experience in leading r,vell-govemed organisations, with an

understanding of organisational systems and processes business and
regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk management,
understanding of emerging local and global trends and management of
accountability and performance.

Experience of crafting Business Strategies -
Experience in developing long-term strategies to grow small tea
plantation business, consistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions.
Finance and accounting Experience -
Experience in handling financial management of organisation along
with an understanding of accounting and financial statements.

Experience in overseeing large and complex Supply Chain -
Experience in overseeing large and complex supply chain operations,
management of innovations, understanding of emerging technologies
including digital information technologies and their disruptive impact.

Understandinfi nse of InfoFmation across the tea Vtlue Chain -
Understanding the use information across the value chain, ability to
anticipate market and weather driven changes and disruption
impacting business and appreciation of the need to realise value and

controls across the organisation.
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4.

a. Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information.

b. Recommend the appointment/removal of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audit,
fixation of audit lee and payment for any other services to statutory auditors.

c. Review with the management the quarterly and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board.

d. Revier,v with the management, statutory and internal auclitors, the internal audit reports
and the reports of statutory auditors.

e. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Audit function, the internal
control system of the Company, compliance rvith the Company's policies and

applicable lar.vs and regulations.
f. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the rvhole-time Finance Director or any other

person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience & background, etc. ofthe candidate.

The Audit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropriate by it or
referred to it by the Board.
Composition and other details
The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan
Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal andMrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar
Jhalaria, Chairman of the Committee, has expert knorvledge of finance and accounting.

Mrs. SwetaPatodia was resigned on 3l't October,2019. Mr. BalkrishanAgarwalhas been
appointed to the Committee in the Board Meeting held on 1 Ith November, 2019.

During the financial year 2019-202A the Committee met 5 (five) times as follows:

S.No. Date of Meeting of Audit Committee Attended by
I 03-04-201 9 Mr" Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria

Mrs. Swati Agarwal

2 28-05-2019 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria
Mrs. Swali Agarwal

13-08-2019 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria
Mrs. Swati Agarwal

4 I l-l l-2019 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria
Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal
Mrs. SwaJi Agarwal

5 t2-02-2020 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria
Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal
Mrs. Swati Agarwal

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of
Directors to evaluate compensation and benefits to Executive Director(s). The broad terms
of reference are to determine and recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to
Executive Directors, remuneration policy of the company and appraisal of performance of
the Directors. The Remuneration Policy is given in the Annexure 'D' to the Directors
Report.
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Composition ond other details
The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria,Mr.
BalkrishanAgarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.Mr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria is the Chairman of
the Committee.

Mrs. Sr.vetaPatodia was resigned on 31't October.2019. Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal has been
appointed to the Comminee in the Board Meeting held on I l'h November, 2019.
During the financial year 2A19-2020 the Commiitee met 2 (trvo) time as follorvs:

Remuneration of D irecto rs
A sitting fee of Rs.2500/- is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending each
meeting of the Board and Rs.1000/- for each meeting of the Committee. During the
Financial Year 2019-2020, following was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive
Directors for attending board meetings and other committee meetings:

Director Sitting Fee

(Rs.)
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria 25,000
Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal 10,000
Mrs. Swati Agarwal 22,000
Mrs. SwetaPatodia

The remuneration and terms of appointment of the Managing Director are approved by the
Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company subject to Government approval
whenever required as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
only one whole time Director, Mr. Manoj KumarDaga who is the Managing Director (MD)
of the Company. He has been appointed for a term of 5 years from 0l/0412019 to
3110312024 as per the Agreement dated 2710712018.He is paid a salary of Rupees Six
Lakhs Sixty Thousand annually, besides other perquisites.Notice or payment in lieu of
notice is not applicable as per the Agreement. The Company shall not pay any severance
fees as per the Agreement. The Company has not given any stock option.

During the Financial Year 2019-2020, following was the remuneration paid to Executive
Director:

4\

S.No. Date of Meeting of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Attended bv

I 28-05-20 I 9 NIr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria
NIrs. Sryati Agarwal

2 I 1-1 l-2019 Mr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria
Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal
Mrs. Swati Agarwal

Director Salary Contribution
toPF&
others

Other
Benefits

Tenure of Service
Contract

Variable
Component

Total
remuneration

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Daga

6,60,000 21,600
5 years from
01/04/2019 to
31/0312024

6,81 ,600



5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors.
The Committee responsible for looking after and dealing with grievance received from
investors of the Company.
Composition and other details
The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria. Mr.
BalkrishanAganval, Mr. lu{anoj Kumar Daga and N{rs. Srvati Agarwal. I\,1r. Ranjan
KumarJhalaria is the Chairman of the Committee.

Mrs. SrvetaPatodia rvas resigned on 31't October,20lg. Mr. BalkrishanAgarrval has been
appointed to the committee in the Boarcl lvleeting held on I l'l' November, j019.

Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

Number of Shareholders' complaints received so far Nil
Number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil
Number of laints Nil

With effect from 27th June, 201I in terms of SEBI Circular No.CIR/OI AE/y2All, dated
3'd June, 2011, processing and updating of all investor complaints in SEBI Complaints
Redress System (scoRES) is being done on behalf of the company by its RTA.

Share Transfer Committee (STC)
Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing Regulation, the Board has delegated the powers of share
transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation etc. to Share Transfer Committee in
.order to expedite the process of share transfer etc. As per Notification No.SEBVLAD-
NRO/GN/2018124 dated 8th June, 2018 and a Press Release No.49l2018 dated 3'd
December, 2018 vide which, the new provisions regulate that except in case of
transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall
not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a
depository. As such share transfer committee shall hold meeting only when need arises
instead of present practice of once in a fortnight.

Composition and ather details
The committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz.: Mr. Manoj KumarDaga, Mr.
BalkrishanAgarwal, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

Mrs. SwetaPatodia was resigned on 31't October, 2019. Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal has been
appointed to the committee in the Board Meeting held on I lth November,iolg.

There were no valid requests pending for share transfer as on 31't March, 2020. All
requests for dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares received in the aforesaid
period were confirmed or rejected into the NSDLICDSL system.

A call centre has been set up to attend to the calls of the investors. The call centre number
is (033) 2210-0553.

Review Committee (RC)
The Review Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors to review the Limited
Review Report as prepared by the Statutory Auditor of the Company Pursuant to
Regulation 33 with Stock Exchanges. The broad terms of reference are to review the
Limited Review Report before sending the same to the Stock Exchanges.

6.

7
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Composition and other details
The Review Committee of the Board comprises of 2 (t1vo) Directors viz: Mr' Manoj

Kumar Daga and Mr. I{arr.ian Krtmar Jhalaria'

During 2019-2A20, the Review Committee met 3 (three) times' Mr' Manoj Kumar

Dagaand Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria, attended all the meetings.

8. General BodY Meetings
Location and tim where last three Annual Ceneral Meetin held:-

27.0'1.18 Rotary' Sadan. 94/2. Chorvringhee Road. 9.-t n.,r,

Kolkata-700020
I0.i0 rt.rtr 2)6.01 .19

9

No spec ial resolution was passed during the previ olrs year through Postal ballot

No spec ial resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot

Means of Communication
The quarterly financial results are being sent to the Stocl< Exchanges and are being

published in the newspapers: The Financial Express (E'nglish daily) and in vernacular'

buranto Barta (Bengati'claily) as per proforma prescribed under the [-isting Regulation'

The same is also displayed on the Company's Website: rvwr'r".norhentea.com'

This website also displays official news releases'

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, if any, are displayed on

the website.

10.
(a)

General Shareholders I nformation
AGM: Date. Tinre antl Ventte

Financial Year

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchanges

National Stock Exchange o1'lndia l-imited,

Exchange Plaza. 5th Floor' Plot no: C/1

G Block, Bandra (E), Murnbai - 400 051 '

Listing fees for the year 2020-21 have been paid'

Tuesday. the 29'r' September. 2020 at 10.30 a'm'

f hrourgh Vicleo Conf-erencing ("VC") /Other

Ar,rdio Visr.ral Means ("OAVM").

April 2019 to March 2020.

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers' 25'r' Floor,

Dalal Streel. Mr-rmbai - 400 001'

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial
year

ended

Date l,ocation Time No. of
Special

Resolution

Members presented by

Person Proxy

2017 28.0'1.17

Indian Council lor Cultural Relations.
9A. Ho Chi Minh Sarani.

Kolkata-70007 I

l0:30 a.m Nil l5l r3

194 4
2018

r83 4
2() l9
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(e) Stock code:
National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

(0 Suspension of trading The application for revocalion of
suspension in trading of EquitY

Shares of the CompanY at BombaY

Stock Erchange is awaiting their

approval.

The Equity Shares of the ComPanY

are traded at the National Stock

Exchange of India Limited.

Please refer last Page of
Directors' Repoft.

(g) Stock Market price Data and Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE

Sensex:
High, Low during each month in last financial year

NORBTEAEXP
s I 9528

(h) Registrar and Share 'lrans f-er Agents MCS Share T'ransfer Agent Limite
383. Lake Cardens, l" Floor.

Kolkata - 700 045.

Telephone:033-4072 405 l: Fax: 033-4072 4050

E-m ai I : mcssta(g!red i f-fm ai l.com

Website : wll'\\l MCSTE grstrars.colr

(i) Share Transf'er SYstem :

The Company's:shares are covered under the cornpulsory dematerialization list and

transferred in dematerialised form through the depository systems of both NSDL &

CDSL. Further, MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited also being the Company's demat

Registrars. requests for dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is

giien by them to the respective depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited

[Nsor-i and Central Depository Seivices Inclia Limited (CDSL) within 15 days'

d

Month & Year
Market Price at NSE Sensex (BSE)

IIigh Low High Low

April '19 5.35 5.30 39487.45 38460.25

May'.19 5.10 5.r0 40124.96 369s6. I 0

June '19 5.00 4.80 40312.07 38870.96

Jul '19 4.90 4.30 40032.41 37128.26

'19 4.30 4.30 37807.55 36102.35

'19 4.30 4.00 39441.12 35987.80

Oct '19 4.00 4.00 40392.22 37 415.83

Nov '19 4.00 3.7 5 41163.79 40014.23

Dec '19 3.75 3.7 5 4 r 809.96 40135.37

Jan'20 3.85 3.45 42273.87 40476.55

Feb'20 3.85 3.8s 41709.30 38219.97

Mar'20 3.85 3.5s 39083. I 7 25638.90
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Distribution of shareholdi
No. of Shares held % of EquityNo. of ShareholdersCategory (l',1o. of

shares)
Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

Physical Form Demat
Form

Physical
Form

From To

9501 219s906 I 407558 18.69 I 1.98500 1 5063I
360227 l.l8 3.07163 +J) 138800501 l 000

179 84800 27 5915 0.72 2.351001 2000 58
131587 0.19 1.129 52 224042001 3000

0.7324 I 0200 8619s 0.093001 4000 J

145380 0.24 1.246 31 279004001 5000
2l 3 1400 143873 0.27 1.225001 10000 5

0 6687859 0.00 56.920 1910001 and above
10260 2s11406 9238594 21.37 78.63Total 15307

1 1 750000 100.0025567Grand Total

Sharehold Pattern as on 3l March 2020

No. of shares held %o ofshares heldCategory
5r.446044759Promoters, Directors & Relatives

392t9 0.33Non Resident Individual
0.01100Indian Financial Institutions

i4400 0.r2Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds
3.47407993Other Bodies Corporate

s243529 44.63Public
ber)Any other (clearing mem

100.00I 17s0000Total
(k) Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity :

Demat ISIN No. INE369C0l0l7

(l) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and

likely impact on Equity :

The Company did not have any outstanding GDRs/AD
Instruments as on 3ltt March,2020

Rs/Warrants or Convertible

m( ) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri-735132, West Bengal(n) Plant Location:

Norben Tea & Exports Limited
l58 HemantaBasuSarani, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata-700 001.
Telephone No: 2210-0553; Fax :2210 0541

(o) Address for correspondence :
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N.Aall credit rating

obtained bY the entitY along

with any revisions thereto

during the relevant financial

year, for all debt instruments

tf such entitY or any fixed

deposit Programme or any

,.h.rn. or ProPosal of the

listed entitY involving

mobilization of funds, whether

List of

ln India or abroad.

(p)

Other Disclosure11. NILDisclosures on materiallY
Partyrelatedsignificant
havethat maytransactions

thewithconflictpotential
atistedofinterests

(a)

NILDetails of non-comP

listed entity, penalties, strictures

imoosed on the listed entitY bY

stock exchange(s) or the board or

any statutory authoritY, on any

*utt., related to caPital markets'

liance bY the

the last three

(b)

denied access to the Audit Committee'

WhistlVigi eSMMechaniahasThe Company
has beennothat personnelaffirmedIt 1SBlower Policy

of vigil
blower

of establishmentDetails
ewhistlmechanism,

nothatand affirmationpolicy
accessdeniedbeenhaspersonnel

committeeaudittheto

c( )

The Company has adopted the following discretionary (non-

,r""a^,"w1 iequirements as stated in Schedule II-Part E'

il;;; atr tn" Listing Regulation: (i) adopting the financial

statement *ith unmofiifiei audit opinion, (ii) the internal

uuJi o. reporting directly to the Audit Committee'

theth allwt applicablehas cornpliedThe CompanY
asGovernanceof Corporaterequirementsmandatory

theof Regulation.iI ListingScheduleunderedspecifi

withof complianceDetails
andrequirements

the non-mandatory
mandatorY
adoption of
requirements

d( )

e
N.A.

subsidiaries

'material'
Policy for determiningl.

FamiliarisationPro grammefor
Directors

ll.

Polaction icyransTPartyRelated111.
andPreservation of documents

Archival
IV

Code of Conductv
PolBlower lcyWhistlevl

on Harrassmentvii.

4q

Weblinks to:



vlll Code of Conduct Regulate,
Monitor and R Trad l-tl

lx. ces and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information

Code of Practi
d r

erpdl'

Ethics Pol ethics icy.pdf
XI Food Safety Poli cy & Objectives food_r

-pol and_objectivesC

xlt Assessment in PlantationRisk
and Factory

ri sk*assessment_i n-pl antati on_and_factory.pdf

xilt Policy for
Materiality
Information

Determination
of Events or

of policy_for*determ
formation.pdf

materiality_of events_or inination_of

(0 of commodity price
risks and commodity hedging
activities

Disclosure N.A

(e) utilization of funds
raised through preferential
allotment or qualified
institutional placement as
specified under Regulation 32
(7A)

Details of NIL

(h)

the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or
disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies by the
Board / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

Certifi cate from a Company
ln thatSecretary practice none of

statutory

The has received CertiaCompany catefi from &AAgarwal
Associates, lnCompany Secretary thatpractice ofnone the
Di rectors thon Boarde theof have beenCompany de,barred
or fieduali fromdisq ntedbeing orappor continui ASng

oDirectors Cf theompanles Board Mi nlby ofstry Corporate
orAffairs any

(i) the Board has not
accepted any recommendation of
any committee of the Board.

Provided that the clause shall
only apply where
recommendation of / submission
by the committee is required for
the approval of the Board of
Directors and shall not apply
where prior approval of the
relevant committee is required
for undertaking any transaction

Where

under these ations

NIL

)0 Total fees for
the listed

all services paid by
entity and its

on a consolidated

Rs.1,38,500/-
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basis, to the StatutorY Auditors
and all entities in the network
firm/ network entity of which the

Statutory Auditor is a Part.

(k) The sexual harassment of women

at workplace (Prevention,

prohibition and redressal) Act,

2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy

in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act, 2013. Intemal Complaints Committee (lCC)

has been set up to redress complaints received regarding

sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,

temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy' The

Policy is gender neutral. During the year under review, no

complaints with allegations of sexual harassment were filed.

12. OS NON- OF UIREMENT
RA OF AS DETAILED

WITH REASONS THEREOF
Th.* ir * non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-

paras as detailed above, thus no explanations need to be given save and except as mentioned

in para (b) above.

WHI TION
REO AS SPECIEIED INP RTEOF ULE II HAVE REE,N

ADOPTED
Off,.e to Non-executive Chairperson:Since the Company is headed by Executive Chairman,

maintenance of separate office is not required.

The Internal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

13

14. F RATE
REO S SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 1 7'TO 27 AND CLAU (B) TO

F ULA OF

The Company has complied with the requirements of aforesaid Regulations

15. DISCI IRR WITII TOD SUSPENSE UNT/
IINCI,AIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
Ar ", 3lffi*t\ 2020, there are no outstanding shares of the Company lying in the demat

suspense/ unclaimed suspense account.

16. CEO/CFO Certification
The Co*pa"y is arty placing a certificate to the Board from Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga,

Managing Diiector (CEO) and Mrs. DipaChatterjeeSarkar, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of
the Comfany, in accordance with the provisions of the proviso to Regulation 33(2)(a) of the

Listing Iiegulation. The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the said persons in respect of the

financial year ended 3l't March,2020 has been placed before the Board at the Meeting held

on 1lft Jtly,2o20.
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17. DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF
CONDUCT
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company pursuant to Clause D of Schedule V of Listing Regulation
with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior N{anagement of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the said Code of Conduct on an annual basis.

18.CODE OF CONDUCT
The Company has framed Code of Conduct for all the Board Members, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Senior Executives of the Company r.vho have affirrned compliance with
the same as on 3l'tMarch, 2020. Duties of the Independent Directors have suitably been
incorporated in the code. The Code is displayed on the Company's website:
www.norbentea.com. A declaration signed by the Managing Director &CEO is obtained by
the Company.

In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations 1992 (as amended), the Board has approved the 'Code of Conduct for
prevention of Insider Trading' and entrusted the Audit Committee to monitor the compliance
of the code. The Board at its meeting held on 14th May, 2015 has approved and adopled the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 relating to the code of practices and
procedure for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and formulated the
code ofconduct ofthe Company.

Date: I l'h July, 2020
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Managing Director
DIN:00123386
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L. K. Bohania & Co.
Chartered Accountants

41, Netaji Subhash Road,
4th Floor, Room No. - 404
Kolkata-700 001.
otr. -2230 9902, 2231 1686
Fax - 033-2210 2438
Email : bohania20l 0@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN: L01 132W8 1990PLCO48991

t. Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements :

(a) opinion:
we have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NoRBEN TEA & ExpoRTs LIMITED
("the CompdnY"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3L,2020, the Statement of profit &
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that
date, and notes to Standalone Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "standalone financial
statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2O!3 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3Lst March, 2020 and its loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

(b) Basis for Opinion :

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standarcls on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stondalone Finonciol
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the lnstitute of the Chartered Accountants of tndia (tCAt) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

(c) Key Audit Matters :

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. As per our audit and
verification of books and records and fact finding etc. we have determined that there are no separate
key audit matters applied to this company which are communicated to the audit's report. Our audit
report in unmodified and self-explanatory.

2. Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon :

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon
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Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf bases on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that.We have

nothing to report in this regard.

3. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements :

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the

Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This responsibility

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

ln preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

4. Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements :

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of this standalone financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

o ldentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the

5\
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we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

internal financial control systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to

continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation'

a

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,

individually or in aggregate, makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We described this matters in our auditor's

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely

rare circumstances, we determined that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
5.1 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audi!

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c)The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by

this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;
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(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31,2020,

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,

2020 from being appointed as a directors in terms of Section 1'64(2) of the AcU

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"ANNEXURE - A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company

to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 1'97 of the AcU

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2074, as amended in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in its

Standalone financial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any materialforeseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

5.2 As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2015 ('the Order"), as amended, issued by

the Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

"ANNEXURE - B" , a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Firm Reg istration N o. 3 1 7 1 3 6E

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No.304011

41, N S Road,
4th Floor, Room No.404
Kolkata - 700 001

Dated: The 11ftday of lulY,2020

U Di 7.: .,. 2-Lj'46; L7 p l / A AA A C4'l 3r f'

6t

Chartered

t
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"ANNEXURE - A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDATONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") - Referred to in paragraph 5.1(0 of our report of even date to
the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31. 2020:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

("the Comp?try"), as of March 3L, 2O2O, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of lnternal

Financial Controls Over financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These

responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the

Companies Act, 20L3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditot's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasona

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition

company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2020,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Firm Registration No. 3171368
Chartered Accountants

Ot,u.-tJ
VIKASH MOHATA

Partner
Membership No.304011

41, N S Road,
4h Floor, Room No.404
Kolkata - 700 001

Dated : The l1th day of fuly, 2020

(-rDllr -7-"C 'JC)trLliIAr4AA( Cj't ']/f
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"ANNEXURE - B" TO THE INDEPENDENTAUDITORS'REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 5.2 under the hqading of "Report on Other Legal and Regullto:ry

@r ieport of even date to the standalone financial stateme,nts of the

Company for the year ended March 31. 2020:

ln respect of the Company's - Property, plant and equipment i.e. Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of Fixed Assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to

cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to

the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed

assets has physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies

between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and based on

examination of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title

deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in

the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

2. ln respect of its lnventories:
(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records which

has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material'

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms or other Limited

Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the order are not applicable to the company and

hence not commented uPon.

4. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied

with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments,

guarantees and securitY.

5. The company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve

Bank of lndia and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not

applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014

prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however not made

a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.

s1



7. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including Provident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other
statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of Provident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when

they become payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and

records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities

are as under:

8. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken loan either from financial

institutions or from the government and has not issued any debentures.

9. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its Officer or Employees has

been noticed or reported during the year.

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the

management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

12. ln our opinion, the Company is not
are not applicable to the Company.

a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the O

Seria!

No

Name of
Statute

Nature of
Dues

Financial Year to
which the matter
pertains

Amount in

(Rsl

Forum

where

dispute is

pending

Amount
Paid under

protest
(Rs.)

7 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 1995 - 1996 24,65,0001- DCIT,

Kolkata

Adjusted
against TDS

2 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2011 - 20!2 8,45,67O/- crr(A),
Kolkata

1,69,3441-

3 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 20L3 -20L4 62,55,770/- crr(A),
Kolkata

9,39,3661-

4 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 20L4 -2075 5,80,970/- crr(A),
Kolkata

1,,18,150/-

5 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2017 -2078 L,7L,464/- crr(A),
Kolkata

1,21,0001-

6o



13. ln our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section L77 and 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3

(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

15. According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not entered

in any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referred in section 192

of the Act.

16. ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve bank of

lndia Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company and hence not commented upon.

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Firm Reg istration N o. 3 1 7 1 3 68
Chartered Accounta,nts

O.u"-t-t.r-{:
VIKASH MOHATA

Partner
Membership No.304011

41, N S Road,
4th Floor, Room No.404
Kolkata - 700 001

Dated: The llthday of lulY,2020

UD;t;l )tC'ttt-tL1 tt AAAA,q'l-3/tr

GI



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01132W81990PLC048991

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March,2O2O

Note No. As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 20L9

Amount in Amount in'

ASSETS

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and EquiPment

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Loans & Advances

Other Financial Assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

CURRENT ASSETS

lnventories
Biological Assets other than bearer plants

Financial Assets

lnvestments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balances other than Note 14

Loans & Advances

Other Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

LIABILIT.IES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Provisions

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Employee's Benefits obligations

Other Liabilities

6

7

8

9

10

5,60,101.80

18,86,693.50

7,15,000.00

88,95,970.82

19,46,59,249.61 t9,13,44,238.82

5,63,544.30

18,87,043.50

7,1s,000.00

95,11,897.15

t,61,73,646.77 37,72,Ot9.65 1,64,49,504.60

11

t2
s5,53,249.07

5,47,844.OO

93,85,000.29

2,91,415.3!

__n,66,11,405.O5_

13,67,95,815.05

40,280.00

36,39,778.8s

3,r5,844.59
7,15,611.00

43,18,485.00

7t,57,724.20
5,47,844.00

L,O7,64,72L.44

2,tL,965.83

13

6

t4
15

7

8

16

L7 34,722.OO

Total Assets

Total Equity and Liabilities

11,75,00,000.00 11,75,00,000.00

.83 15,30,31,473.83
t7
18 3,

19

20

2t
22

23

20

24

25

5, 5,11,88,598.00

39,52,634.00

3,06,74,928.73

4,76,051.00

11,29,057.40

23,94,320-87

3,97 3,97,59,224.00

35,25,688.00

2,37,78,356.24
45,20,O87.49

23,76,485.O0

2,33,85,513.L\
20,11,881.13

22,66,tt,4O5.O5

L7 68L.44 2,7t,87,075.68

4,26,946.00

t3,t2,453.5r
t2,33,r37.87

22,64,7s,998.89

Corporate lnformation

Basis of Accounting

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Estimates

1

2

3

4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date

For L. K BOHANIA & CO'

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 3171368

MANOI KUMARDAGA
Chairman & Mg. Director

[DIN:00123386)

I
RANJAN KUMARJHALARIA

Independent Director
(DIN:05353976)

f.,\r,*u'[::].- $^rtA t\G\{uqL

MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343
VIKASH MOHATA

Partner
Membership No.304011

Kolkata

The 11th day ofJuly, 2020.

L',Dr /^J .', ')-.t');ttt'tt A4AA (" 4 s zi r

D Cl,re.ile,r{^
DIPA CHATTERJEE SARKAR

Chief Financial 0 fficer

n ..- \- ' D --=\.

G2_

20,753.00

22,98,895.02

11,78,8O9.27

7,15,511.00

32,45,835.00
19,26,097.00

22,64,75,998.89



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. L01132W81990PLC048991

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2020

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

For the year ended

3l-st March, 2019
INCOME

Revenue from OPerations

Other lncome

Total Income

EXPENSES

changes in lnventories of Finished Goods, stock-ln-Trade and work-in-Progress

Employee Benefits ExPense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/Loss before Taxes & Extraodinary Charges

Prior Period Expenditure

Prolit before Taxes

Tax Expense:

Current Tax

lncome Tax For Earlier Year

Deferred Tax

Profit/(Loss) for the Period
Other Comprehensive lncome

i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii. lncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive lncome for the Year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earnings Per Share

Nominal Value of Shares (Rs.10)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding durinB the year

Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share

Corporate lnformation

Basis of Accounting

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Estimates

Note No.

33

Amount in'

4,87,43,301.86

6,51,904.31

Amount in '

5,40,01,261.38

8,s8,7L2.73
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

15,85,002.00

3,49,39,570.72

71,74,722.L5

46,86,400.79

1,61,42,005.95

.7 5,48,59,974.17

(48,s32.00)

3,07,94,952.10

58,46,1L2.89

43,37,503.04

t,77,56,1O7.t9

6,45,27,701.62 5,

11,51,32,495.451
/26,26,t59.r7],

lL,90,7TL.00

(38, 16,880.11)

2,62,020.00

6,73,L77.33

2,00,000.00

4,76,337.53

,692.781 .7.64l

34

12,26,2L1.O01

58,251.00

(1,61,328.00)

4t,542.O0

(L,67',966.00) (1, 19,786.00)

(1,52,35,658.78) (46,13,003.64)

1,17,50,000.00
(1.37)

1,17,50,000.00

(0.38)

1

2

3

4

The Notes are an integral part ofthe Financial Statements

As per our Report annexed of even date

For L. K. BOHANIA & CO.

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 317136E \4.ir\o- \rcL\tEL
MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary
Membership No.A45343

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DIN:00123386)

/ Jt*L-"-j-
RANJAN KUMAR IHATARIA

Independent Director
(DIN:05353976)

Q,rr'-n;'f

VIKASH MOHATA

Partne r

Membership No. 304011

Kolkata

The 11th day ofJulY,2020.

D C 't'+Jl o:f'-
DIPA CHATTERJEE SARKAR

Chief Financial Officer

N-- L- b

L, D1ru .' >.a.4-_:rrLr tl eAA a c g S-1i"f 6=

(1,60,67



NORBEN TEA COMPANY LIMITED

CIN No. L01 132WB1990PLC048991

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2O2O

For the
Year ended

31st March 2020

For the
Year ended

31st March 2019

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES :

Net ProfiV(Loss) before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

(Gain)/Loss on DisPosal of Assets

Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Finance cost
(Gain)/Loss on Mark to Market of lnvestment

lnterest Received

Dividend

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adiustments for:
(lncrease)/Decrease ln Trade Receivable

(lncrease)/Decrease ln lnventories

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Finacial Assets

(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Current Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Trade Payable

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Employee Benefit Obligations

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Current Liabilities

lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Financial Liabilities

Cash generated from oPerations

Direct Tax (paid) / Refund (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIMTIES :

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital WIP (net of subsidy)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets

lnterest Received

Dividend Received

Net Cash used in investing activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings

Proceeds/Repayment) Long Term borrowing from Bank & Financial lnstitution

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Unsecured Loans

lnterest & Finance Charges

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

Note : 1. Figures shown in bracket shows cash outflow.

2. Previous year's Figures have been regroupedirearranged wherever necessary

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For L. K BOHANIA & CO'

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 3171

,*l-t.-,;--L

VIKASH MOHATA

Partner
Membership No.304011

Kolkata

The 11th day of July, 2020'

(1,51,32,495.45) (38,15,880.11)

46,86,400.79

14,65,777.0ol
71,74,722,L5

19,527.00
(6,08,359.00)

(62s.oo)

43,37,503.04

2,2L,923.90
(1,61,328.00)

58,46,712.89
8,s10.50

(6,8s,093.00)
(s8s.o0)

(43,26,505.51) 57,50,L64.22

13,44,326.33
16,o4,475.t3
8,81,625.00

179,449.48!.
25,08,205.35
(1,83,395.11)

11,61,183.00

(23,L9,879.44],

1,80,251.90

27,24,070.00
(13,114.88)

(s,44,732.s6)

26,687.41
4,37,509.47

04)

34,97,167.28
(5,04,881.00)

(A) 28,92,286.28 54,59,742.26

60,1s,288.02
(5,55,545.76)

(80,01,411.58)

6,08,359.00
52s.00

(t,L7,47,124.37)

1,70,000.00

6,85,093.00
s85.00

(B)

MIRA HALDER

Company Secretary

Membership No.A45343

.s8) (1,08,s t,446.37],

3,92,843,L3

17,95,626.001
l,22,25,OOO.OO

17L,74,722.151

(5,15,627.01)

(10,58,495.00)

1,14,09,014.00
(s8,45,112.89)

(c) 46,47',494.98 778.t0

t,47,353.68
10,31,455.59

(14,42,926.0tl.

L7,58,770.60

11,78,809.27 3,15,844.59
7,15,5L7.007, 15,511.00

27 59

(u-i't Kir.'- Ha-\to'r- A

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director

TLL*
RANJAN KUMARJHALARIA

lndependent Director
(DlN:053s3976)

\ U^o'U c'rt-
DIPA CHATTERJEE SARKAR

Chief Financial Officer

L,biN" ?{,') o) ot i AA AA (" tP S-3 t tr 6q
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : 101132WB1990P1C048991

ruOrgS OU rlUAUCtlt SrRteUrUt rOn txr YgRn rruOrO Oru gtsr UnnCn' ZOZO

Note No. 1
CoRPORATEINFORMATIoN --!_:,-r :_ ,-r:^ T!,^.
Norben Tea & Exports Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in lndia. The company is

engaged in the business of growing and manufacturing of Tea and providing commission'

Note No.2
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting standards (lnd

As) as per the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the companies Act,

2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act'

company,s financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees, which is also its functional currency'

The standalone lnd AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the following items:

a) Financial Assets - Current lnvestments in Shares - Valued at book value instead of market'

b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities - Valued at fair value on Balance Sheet approach'

c) U nrealised Gain/Loss on Current lnvestments - The management is of the opinion that the investment is

long term and strategic in nature. The management does not foresee any dimunition in value of these

investments; hence no provision is required to be made'

Note No.3
Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements'

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated' The financial

statements are for M/s Norben Tea & Exports Limited (the 'Company').

3.1 Fair valuation of lnvestments
Under the previous GAAp, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long-term

investments or current investments based on the intended holding period and realisability' Long-term

investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such

investments. current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under lnd AS, these investments

are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments (other than

equity instruments designated as at FVocl) have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of

transition and subsequently in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020'

Fair value changes with respect to investments in equity instruments designated as at FVocl have been

recognised in FVoct - Equity investments reserve as at the date of transition and subsequently in the other

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020'

3.2 Borrowings
lnd AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the

carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognised in the profit or loss over the

tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method'

Under previous GAAp, these transaction costs were charged off to statement of Profit & Loss or capitalized with

the qualifying asset as per the application of the corresponding Borrowings'

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under lnd AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts

included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive

3.3
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3.4

income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the
profit or loss for the year.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings as at April L,}OLG has been adjusted consequent to the above lnd AS transltion adjustments.

Other Comprehensive Income
Under lnd AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the
period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in

profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as 'other comprehensive income' includes

remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments and debt

instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

Deferred Tax

lndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on

differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. lnd AS 12 requires entities to account

for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the

carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of lnd AS 12

approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required

under lndian GAAP.

ln addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. According to the

accounting policies, the company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognized

in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

Re-classifications
The Company has done the following reclassifications as per the requirements of lnd-AS :

Assets / liabilities which do not meet the definition of financial asset / financial liability have been reclassified to
other asset / liability.
Remeasurement gain/loss on long term employee defined benefit plans are re-classified from statement of
profit and loss to OCl.

The Company has re-classified unpaid dividend balance form cash and cash equivalents to other bank balances.

Excise duty on sales was earlier netted off with Sales, has now been presented separately.

Property Plant and Equipment, lntangible Assets and !nvestment Properties
As permitted by para D5-D8B of lnd AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under

previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment. The same election has been made in respect

of intangible assets also.

Fixed Assets

i) Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at their original cost less depreciation. Cost includes incidental expenses.

Profits or losses on sale of tangible fixed assets are included in the statement of profit and loss and

calculated as difference between the value realized and book value. Capital work-in-progress is stated at

cost. Subsidies received in respect of tangible fixed assets are deducted from the cost of respective assets.

ii) Cost of Plantations being Bearer Plants are valued on historical cost basis based on the cost incurred for new

extension beginning from uprooting, planting, rejuvenation and maintenance etc. till the time it started bearing

fruits/G reen Tea leaves.

iii) Capital work-in-progress is stated at the amount expended up to the stage of completion of the project.

Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on Straight Line Method on all assets except land. Depreciation on

tangible assets is provided over the useful lives of assets estimated by the management. Depreciation for assets

purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. lntangible assets are

3.5

3.6

3.7
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3.9

respective individual estimated useful lives on a Straight Line basis commencing from the date assets are

available to the Company for use. The management estimates the useful lives for the fixed assets are as follows :

Sr.No Name of the Assets Useful Life

(years)

L Buildi & Non-Factory Buildi 60

2 plant & Machinery*, Roads & Bridges, water lnstallation*, lrrigation

ut ents and Electric lnstallation

30

3 Furniture & Fittings* and Ring & Tubewell* 20

4 Motor Vehicles* L5

5 Computer* 6

6 Office ments 5

7 Bearer Plants* 70

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out bY

external valuers the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over

which management expects to use these assets.

Hence the useful lives for the assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11

of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and Leasehold land are not depreciated.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes Cash on Hand, Cash at Bank, Cheque in Hand and other short-term highly

liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions
A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and

are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These

estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance

contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any

reimbursement.

3.10

3.11 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity

share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during

the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted

for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation

of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity sharehotders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for

the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contingent liabilities
provision of contingent liabilities are not made, unless & until the demand raised by statutory authorities,

against which the company has preferred an appeal which is pending with the different forum of the said

authorities are ascertai ned.

3.L2
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3.13 Recognition of Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue

are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's
activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Sale of goods

Sales represents invoiced value of goods sold excluding Goods and Service tax.
lncome from lnvestment
lncome from lnvestment other than investment in shares of companies is included, together with related tax

deducted at source in the Statement of Profit & Loss on an accrual basis. lncome from investment in shares of
companies is recognized on actual realisation.
lnterest lncome
lnterest income is recognized on accrual basis.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting
date.

3.t4 lnventories
lnventories are valued as under :

Raw materials - At weighted average cost.

Stock of Tea - at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.
Stock of stores & spare parts - At cost (net of modvat credit) or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Other Stocks - At cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

Obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocks are identified at the time of physical verification of stocks and

where necessary provision is made for such stocks.

Note No.4
SIGNIFICANT JUDGEM ENTS & ESTIMATES

Estimates
As per para 14 of lnd AS 101, an entity's estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date of transition to lnd AS

at the end of the comparative period presented in the entity's first lnd AS financial statements, as the case may

be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless

there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to
reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per para 15 of the standard, where application of lnd AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that
were not required under previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at

the date of transition or at the end of the comparative period.

The Company's estimates under lnd AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in
preparation of the financial statement that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

-Fair Valuation of financial instruments carried at FWPL and/ or FVOCI.

-Fair Valuation of Biological Assets measured at fair value less cost to sell.
-lmpairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.
-Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost.

-Discounted vaue of liability for decommissioning costs.

*o
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. LOll32WBl990PLC04B99 1

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2020

LongTerm Short TermRefer
Note No,

Refer
Note No,

7.1

As at
31st March 2020

As at
3Lst March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

6
Amount in Amount in

5.1 & 6.2 5,60,101.80 5,63,544.30 22,98,895.02 36,39,778.85

5,60,101.80 5,63,544.30 22,98,895.02 36,39,778.85

5,60,101.80 5,63,544.30 22,98,895.02 36,39,778.85

Total 5,50,101.80 5,53,544.30 22,98,895.02 36,39,778.85

Total Trade Receivables 5,60,101.80 5,63,544.30 22,98,895.02 36,39,778.85

6.1 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

6,2 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

7 LOANS&ADVANCES Long Term Short Term

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables

Total Trade Receivables

Break Up ofSecurity Details
Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good

Loans & Advances to Others
Unsecured, considered good

Other Loans and Advances
Advances to others
Advance to Employees

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

L,23,472.00 1,23,472.00

32,45,835.00 42,45,835.00

10,00,000.00

7,63,22t.50
10,00,000.00

7,63,571.50 72,650.OO

Total Loans &Advances 18,86,693.50 18,87,043.50 32,45,835.00 43,18,485.00

No Loans are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

8 OTHERSFINANCIALASSETS Long Term Short Term

7.1

As at
31st March 2020

Security & Other Deposits

Other non-current investments
lnterest Receivable on Loan and Fixed Deposits

9 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS {NET)

Deferred Tax liabilities
Arising on account of:
Property, Plant & Equipment

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of:
Section 43B of lncome-tax Act

Brought Forward Unabsorbed Losses

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

9.1 The recognition ofdeferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation/business losses has been
timing difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal of which is virtually certian.

As at
31st March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

8.1 7,15,000.00 7,15,000.00

79,26,097.0O t7,34,722.00

7,15,000.00 7,15,000.00 t9,26,097.00 t7,34,722.O0

8.1 FixeddepositamounttoRs.T,lS,000/-|P.Y.7,75,000/-) markedlieninfavourofStateBankof lndiaagainstBankGuarntee

Refer

Note No.

As at
31st March 2020

As at

3Lst March 2019

Amount in Amount in

1,13,33,s80.80 7,06,60,403.47

1,13,33,580.80 1,06,60,403.47

13,31,254.00

L,88,99,297.62

t2,73,003.00

1.,88,99,297.62

2,02,30,55t.62 2,01,72,300.62

.15

:t-2

9.1

tax liability on account of



10 NONCURRENTTAXASSETS(NET)

Advance Tax & TDS

Less: Provision for Taxation

11 INVENTORIES

(As valued and certified by the Management)
Finished Goods

Stores and Spares etc.

12 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Fair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)

l2.l Unharvested tea leaves on bushes as on 31st March 2020 was24L2O kgs (31.03.2019 - 23820 kgs)

13 CURRENTINVESTMENTS As at 31st March2O2O
Face Value

Amount

13.1

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED
CIN No. L01 132W81990PLC048991

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2020
Refer

Note No.

Refer
Note No.

Refer
Note No.

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

64,78,A48.65
(23,63,968.00)

61,35,987.55
(23,63,958.00)

41,14,880.65 37,72,019.65

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

31,62,955.00
23,90,294.07

47,47,957.OO

24,09,767.20

55,53,249.07 71,57,724.20

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

s,47,844.00 5,47,844.00

5,47,844.00 5,47,844.00

As at 31st March 2019

QnW Amount

INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
oR LOSS

Investments in Quoted Shares

Bansisons Tea Industries
Dhunseri Investments Ltd
Dhunseri Petrochem & Tea Ltd
Dhunseri Tea & Industries
Longview Tea Company
T&l Global

TOTAT CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Aggregate Book Value ofthe Quoted Investment

100

50

100

20

200

100

100

50

100

20

200

100

10

10

100

10

10

10

820.00

6,118.00

4,605.00

2,240.00

1,200.00

5,770.OO

860.00

13,265.00

9,325.00

4,43t.00
3,6s4.00

8,745.OO

20,753.00 40,280.00

20,753.00 40,280.00

L4 CASHANDCASHEQUVALENTS

Balances With Banks :

ln Current Account/Cash Credit Account
Cash in Hand

15 BANKBALANCES(OTHERTHANNOTE: 14)
Fixed Deposit with Bank

15'1 All the above fixed deposits has been lien to bank as collateral security against loan repayment on demand

16 OTHERCURRENTASSETS

Advances other than Capital Advances
Prepaid Expenses

Other Receivables

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

79,235.21

!0,99,574,06
81,206.s3

2,34,638.06

11,78,809.27 3,15,844.59

7,15,6L1.00 7,L5,6L1.00

7,15,611.00 7,15,6LL.00

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

1,03,570.98

L,87,844.33

1,0s,s91.50

7,06,374.33

Total Other Assets

:+5

2,91,4t5.3t 2,17,965.83



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L0ll32wBl990PLC048991

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 3 1st March, ZOZO

17 EQUITY SI{ARE CAPITAL

L7.l AuthorisedShareCapital
Equity Share Capital of Rs 10 each

17,Z Issued Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of'10/- each

17.3 Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of'10/- each fully paid-up

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid
Mangalam Products PW. Ltd.

Tongani Tea Co. Limited

Refer
Note No.

As at 31st March2O2O
No. ofShares Amount

As at 31st March 2019
No. ofShares Amount

1,20,00,000.00 12,00,00,000.00 1,20,00,000.00 12,00,00,000.00

1,20,00,000.00 12,00,00,000.00 1,20,00,000.00 12,00,00,000.00

1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00 1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00

1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00 1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00

1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00 1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00

1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00 1,17,50,000.00 11,75,00,000.00

17.4 Reconciliation ofthe number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

Opening Number of Shares as on Oll04l20tg
Add: Change during the year
Closing as on 3ll3l2020

There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

17.S Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share and each holder of Ordinary shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors (except interim dividend) is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meetings. The claim of Ordinary Shareholders on earnings and on assets in the event of liquidation,
follows all others, in proportion to their shareholding.

17.6 Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

The Company does not have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company.

17.7 Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5olo shares in the Companv
As at 31st March2O2O As at 31st March 2019

No. ofShares o/o Holdins No. ofShares %o Holdine

12,05,950.00

22,60,650.00

to.26
79.24

12,05,950.00

22,60,650.OO

1o.26

19.24

t7.B

17.9

No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet dat,

The Company has not allotted any equity shares against consideration other than cash nor has allotted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares
nor has bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

17.10 No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year

17.11 NocallsareunpaidbyanyDirectororOfficeroftheCompanyduringtheyear.

+t

1,17,50,000

1,17,50,000



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. L01 132WB1990pLC048991

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 3lst March, 2020

18 OTHEREQUITY

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Other Reserves

18,1 General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

lB.2 Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Balance at the end of the year

18,3 OtherReserves

State Capital Investment Subsidy
Balance at the end ofthe year

Sales Tax Remission Reserve
Balance at the end of the year

Total Other Reserve

Total Reserve & Surplus

L9 BORROWINGS

Term Loans
From Banks:

Rupee Loans
(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets
acquired)

From Others:
Rupee Loans

(Secured by Hypothecation ofthe related assets
acquired)

Total
Amount disclosed under the head "Other Financial Liability,'

19,2 Unsecured Loan
From Body Corporate - Related party
From Body Corporate - Other

Break Up ofSecurity Details
Secured

Unsecured

As at
3lst March 2020

As at
31st March 201.9

2,s0,00,000.00
(1,02,06,80s.9s)

45,O2,621.00

2,50,00,000.00

60,28,852.83

4s,02,621.OO

1,92,95,815.05 3,55,31,473.83

As at
3lst March 2020

As at

31st March 2O19

2,50,00,000.00 2,50,00,000.00

2,50,00,000.00 2,50,00,000.00

As at
31st March 2020

As at

3Lst March 2019

60,28,852.83

( 1,62,35,6s8.78)

r,06,4t,856.47
(46,13,003.64)

(1,02,06,80s.95) 60,28,8s2.83

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019

34,31,000.00 34,31,000.00

to,7L,62t.O0 70,71,62L.O0

45,02,62t.00 45,02,621.00

Non-Current Portion Current Maturities
Refer

Note No.
As at

3lst March 2020
As at

31st March 2019
As at

3 lst March 2020
As at

3l.st March 2019
19.1

8,13,194.00 6,87,138.00 8,00,000.00

1,63,598.00 1,46,030.00 1,43,45t.00 2,91,349.00

1,63,599.00 1,46,030.00 8,30,589.00 10,91,349.00
(10,91,349.00)

1,63,598.00 9,59,224.00

3,76,25,000.00
1,34,00,000.00

1,90,00,000.00
1,98,00,000.00

5,10,25,000.00 3,88,00,000.00

1,63,598.00

5,10,25,000.00
9,59,224.00

3,88,00,000.00

Total 5,11,88,598.00 97 224.00

8,30,589.00 10,91,349.00

1,92,95,815.05 3,55,3t,473.83



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CrN No. L01 132WB1990ptc048991

Notes to Financiar statements as on and for the year ended 31st Marc],.,zozo

Long-term
20 PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits

Total

2I SHORTTERMBORROWINGS

22 TRADEPAYABLES

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises

For Goods & Services

Short-term
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019
As at

3 lst March 2020
As at

31st March 2019

39,52,634.00 35,25,588.00 4,76,051.00 4,26,946.OO

35,2s,688.00 4,76,051.O0 4, 26,946.00

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019Loans Repayable on Demand

Working Capital Loan from Banks 2,37,78,356.24 2,33,85,513.L1

2l.l The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings

2,37,,78,355.24 1

2,37,78,356.24 2,33,85,513.11

2,37,78,356.24 2,33,85,513.11
21.2 Terms and conditions ofShort Term Borrowings

2r.3

2,..4

The short Term Borrowings from state Bank of lndia are secured primarily by way of hypothecation of stocks of tea crops, green leaves, stores & spares,book debts' other current assets, plant & machinery and other fixed assets, equitable mortgage of all piece and parcel of land measuring approx 126 acreslandandbuildingthereonunderBerubari G.P.SituatedatDistJalpaiguri, lienonsBl FixedDeposits Rs.7,15,67L/-(Facevalue) inthenameof companyandfurther secured by personal guarantee of promoter Director.

The aggregate amount of loan guaranteed by Director is Rs. 2,33,43,511^ (previous year Rs. 2,39,01,140t-)
The present applicable rate of interest per annum for Cash credit loan is O.gs% over base rate as effective.

Long-term Short-termRefer
Note No, As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 20L9
As at

3 lst March 2020
As at

31st March 2019

45,20,087.49 20,L7,88L.13

45,20,087.49 20,1 1,881.13

Sl. No.
Particulars

As at
31st March 2020

As at

31st March 2019
amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms

section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with

nt of the payment made to the supplier
appointed day during each accounting year

Nrt NIL

il Th e amount of interest due and payable for the
of delay in making payment but without adding
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Ntt
nterprises Development Act, 2006

amount of interest accrued and remaining un
the end of each accou r NIL

amount of further interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, until such

the interest dues above are actually paid to
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a

uctible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Nil_

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006.

NIL

Iu

NIL

tv

NIL

Long-term Short-term23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current Maturity of Long Term Debts
lnterest Accrued on Borrowings
Credit Balance in Current Account (Due to Reconciliation)
Other Payables

Refer
Note No. As at

3lst March 2020
As at

3Lst March 2019
As at

31st March 2020
As at

31st March 2019

8,30,589.00

12,70,366.0O

2,75,530.00

10,91,349.00

5,09,014.00

2t8.44
89,100.00

23.1 There are no amounts due for payment to the lnvestor Education

-+6
Fund at the year end

23, 17,89,681.44

39,52,634.00



24 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS OBTIGATTONS

Salaries & Wages Payable

Gratuity Payable

23 OTHER LIABILITIES

Advances Received from Customers
Statutory Dues

Others

26 REVENUEFROMOPERATIONS

Sale of Products

Tea

Green Leaf

Sale of Cuttings

Other Ooeratine Revenue

Commission lncome

27 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income
On Loans

On Bank Deposit

Other lncome

(TNCREASE)/ DECREASE rN TNVENTORTES OF
FINISHED GOODS

Finished Goods
Opening lnventories
Closing lnventories

Total changes in inventories of finished goods

29 EMPLOYEEBENEFITSEXPENSE

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

Gratuity Provided

30 FINANCECOST

Interest Expenses

To Banks on Term Loans

" Banks On Working Capital Loans

Other Borrowing Costs
lnterest On Car Loan

lnterest on Unsecured Loan

Other Financial Charges

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED
CIN No. t0t 132WB1990pLC048991

Notes to Financial statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Long-term

As at
3 lst March 2020

As at
31st March 20L9

7,28,962.40

4,00,095.00
10,07,388.01

3,0s,065.5(

11,29,057.40 L3,L2,453.51

Short-termRefer
Note No.

As at
31st March 2020

As at
3Lst March 2019

As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

23,027.57

22,66,570.1O

1,04,723.20

75,23t.57
9,76,287.7C

1,81,518.60

23,94,320.87 L2,33,t37.87

For the year
ended

3lst March 2020

For the year
ended

31.st March 2019

4,06,78,04O.86

1,68,996.00

38,23,500.00

4,37,24,528.38

2,03,384.00

52,08,000.00

40,72,765.00 48,55,349.00

5,40,0L,251.38

For the year
ended

31st March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 20L9

5,09,815.00

98,544.00

43,545.31

6,03,245.00

81,848.00

7,73,6L9.73

5,51,904.31 8,58,7L2.73

2A For the year
ended

3lst March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 2019

47,47,957.00

31,52,955.00
46,99,425.O0

47 9s7.00

15,85,002.00 (48,s32.00)

For the year
ended

3lst March 2020

I or the year
ended

31st March 2019

2,58,73,086.66

s3,83,422.92

31,65,L20.64

5,17,940.50

2,29,04,928.06

3s,94,204.00

30,54,292.62

6,3 L,527.42
3,49,39,570.72 3,Ot,94,952.t0

3,49,39,570.72 3,0L,94,952.70

For the year For the year
ended ended

3lst March 2020 31st March 2019

1,26,70t.00

2t,50,224.48

42,370.00

48,23,087.00

1,59,040.67

2,72,121,.00

20,68,767.00

57,L08.52

34,56,849.00

2,63,988.37

73,01,423.t5 50,58,233.89

1,26,701.00 2,1,2,727.00
Less: AmountCapitalised

-++ 71,74,722.L5 58, 46,7r2.89



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
CIN No. LO tt1?VtBtgg0PLC04B99 1

Notes to Financial statements as on and for the year ended 3lst March, 2020

31 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

On Tangible Assets

32 OTHEREXPENSES

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials
Consumed

Power & Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery
Repairs to Other Assets

Manufacturing Expenses

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges & Selling
Expenses

Commission & Brokerages

Auditors' Remuneration

Rent, Rates & Taxes

lnsurance

Change in fair valuation of lnvestments
Loss on Sale of Asset

Directors' Fees & Commission

Legal and Professional Charges
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses

Other Expenses

32,1 Auditors'Remuneration

Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Other Fees

33 TAXEXPENSE

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

34 OTHERCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME

For the year
ended

3 lst March 2020

For the year
ended

3Lst March 2019

45,86,400_79 43,37,503.04

46,85,400.79 43,37,503.04

For the year
ended

3 lst March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 20L9

25,79,860.13

65,62,642.32

2,82,t89.O0
6,46,784.43

1,71,238.8O

L8,74,3tO.39

9,45,087.65

3,51,783.00
1,38,500.00

4,53,214.9O

66,556.00

19,527.00

58,000.00

2,3L,t26.00

79,478.82

16,8t,,707.52

5,67,688.19

64,48,779.32

2,40,74t.34
6,99,467.25

1,38,576.00

25,34,247.97

18,43,794.55

3,34,998.37

94,000.00

2,91,677.34

63,465.36

8,510.s0
2,27,923.90

52,500.00

6,77,01L.50

91,777.00

28,47,548.60

1,61,42,005.96 t,71,56,t07.t9

1,7 L07.t9

For the year
ended

3 lst March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 2019

75,000.00

29,000.00

34,500.00

75,000.00

19,000.00

1,38,500.00 94,000.00

For the year
ended

3lstMarch 2020

For the year
ended

3lst March 2019

6,73,177.33

2,00,000.00

4,76,337.53

6,73,L77.33 6,76,337.53

For the year
ended

31st March 2020

For the year
ended

31st March 2019
35.1
34.1

Items that will be not be reclassilied to prolit or loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement ofthe defined benefit plans

Less: Tax expense on the above
12,26,217.00)

58,251.00

( 1,61,328.00)

41,542.00
(1,67,966.00) (1,19,785.00)

Total

-(q

(1,62,966.00) (1,1s,786.00)



35 Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

a) Income tax liability not provided for:

Name of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount (in Rs.) Period to which
the amount

relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

lncome Tax lncome Tax 24,65,000/- 199s-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 8,45,670/- 201,1-2012 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 62,55,770/- 201.3-2014 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 5,80,970/- 20t4-20L5 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 77,77,464/- 2077 -2078 CIT(A), Kolkata

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed lncome Tax liabilities which are pending with lncome tax department
hence not provided for.

b) Estimated amount of expenditure remaining to be executed on capital account (net of amount already
expended) Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. NIL).

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.278000/- was not acknowledged by the company as debt and had been written
.back to the accounts in the year 2013-14. The management is confident that no liability would arise on W.B.R.E.

& P.E. Cess.

Balance confirmation from some Sundry Creditors and Sundry Debtors are still awaited

Prior period charges consist of following expenses/(income)

ln terms of the Accounting Standard (AS)-17, issued by the lCAl, neither a business segment nor a geographical
segment has been identified as reportable segment during the year.

Total value of stores & spare parts and packing material consumed: lndigenous - 1,00% - Rs. 25,79,860.1,3/-
(Previous year - lndigenous - LOO% - Rs. 5,68,688.L9).

lncome and Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

4t.

Items 20L9 -2020
Rs.

2018 - 20t9
Rs.

Other Expenses 77,90,717/-

Total LL,gO,7LLl-

+t

t



Relationship Name

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Mg. Director
Ms. Mira Halder-Company Secretary
Ms. Dipa Chatterjee Sarkar- CFO

42. Related Party Transactions -Names of related parties and description of relationship:-

Particulars of transactions and closi balances du the year:

The figures in bracket represent corresponding amount of the previous year

43 ln view of the lock-down declared across the countrty by the Central & State Governments due to Covid - 19

pandeminc during the second half of March 2020, the company's operations were advesrsely impacted and the

company recorded very poor sales record for the said period. The company has resumed operations in a phased

manner as per the guidelines released by the Central & State Governments from time to time.

Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified / regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND

AS and the requirements laid down in Division-ll of the Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date.

44

For L.K.BOHANIA & CO.

Chartered Accountonts
FRNo.317136E

t'A;f'A Uoltq.*-:

MIRA HALDER

Membership No.A45343

Company Secretary

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

DIN:00123386
Choirmon & Mg.Director

*€ uu-tl lLl---/

VIKASH MOHATA

Partner
Membership No.304011

L,DiN.- )(-:'3c LTElt/ AAAA(li'' \'?id

Place: Kolkata

Date : The 11th day of July, 2020

RANJAN KUMAR JHAIARIA
DIN:05353976
lndependent Director

D cL-hr"r,*
DIPA CHATTERJEE SARKAR

Chief Financial Officer

Balance as on 31"
March,2018

Enterprises over which Key

Managerial Personnel have

significant influence

Key Managerial
Personnel

Nature of transactions

76,02,O00/-Remuneration
(--)(-) (13,85,400/-)

58,000/Sitting Fees

(--)(-) (s2,s}ol-)

bo


